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APPLICATION FOR WRITTEN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
ZONING HEARING EXAMINER PUBLIC HEARING  

 STAFF REPORT 
 
APPLICATION #: ZH20180091 
APPLICANT:  DLM Realty Ltd. 
OWNER:  DLM Realty Ltd. 
ADDRESS:  2623 Erie 
PARCEL:  041-0004-0103 
ZONING:  OL (office) and Hyde Park Square Urban Design Overlay 
COMMUNITY: Hyde Park 
REPORT DATE: 5.11.18 (Revised 6.7.17) 
HEARING DATE: 6.13.18 
STAFF REVIEW: Matthew Shad, Zoning Administrator 
   Weston Munzel, Zoning Plan Examiner 
 
 
Details of Zoning Relief Required: 
 
1. Sec. 1437- Urban Design Overlay Review – The proposed detached garage 

demolition and parking lot construction in the rear of the structure require an urban 
design review due to their location in the Hyde Park Square Urban Design Overlay. 

 
Existing Conditions: 
The subject property is one of two contiguous lots owned by the applicant and that are 
both proceeding through the urban design review process.  The 2623 Erie Avenue lot is 
a 50’x 132’ (6,600 SF) parcel on the edge of the Hyde Park Square business district.  
The site contains a two-story building that contains an office use.  The site has a small 
parking lot in the rear that can hold approximately three cars.  There is also a two-car 
detached garage in the rear.   
 
The Hyde Park Square area is primarily zoned CN-P (commercial neighborhood 
pedestrian) with an urban design overlay. However, OL office zoning exists to the north 
across Erie and to the west.  The areas to the east of the subject property are zoned 
CN-P (commercial) and to the south is zoned SF-6 single family.  The site to the south 
is also owned by the applicant and has a “Notwithstanding” ordinance allowing an office 
use. 
 
It should be noted that the office use allowed currently applies only to the current SSP 
law firm use.  Should the law firm cease occupancy of the building, the office use would 
cease.  Please see the following aerial and street view images that show the existing 
conditions and locational context. The subject property is outlined in red. 
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Aerial view of the subject and the two separate parcels (outlined in red). Each parcel has its own case number  

and report, but both sites are incorporated into coordinated site design.  Erie Avenue is on the top of the image. 
  Residential uses abut the subject property partially to the west and south.  
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The Erie Avenue site as viewed from Erie Avenue looking south.  

 

 
Image showing the detached garage that is proposed to be demolished on the left; and parking lot coordinated with 

new driveway on parcel to the south.  New driveway proposed where re-cycling containers are located. 
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Proposed Conditions: 
The applicant has requested an urban design review for the demolition of the existing 
detached garage and proposed parking lot revisions.  Per Section 1437 of the zoning 
code, an urban design review and approval is required for the proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot.     
 
The proposed parking lot has six spaces in the rear of the site.  Removal of the garage 
allows for a more efficient parking lot design. Please see the following images that 
outline the proposed parking lot. 
  

 
Site plan showing proposed parking lot highlighted in red. Landscaping is not required on the Erie Avenue 

lot since it abuts commercial/office zoned land to the west.   
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Site plan showing new pavement in hashed area. 

 
Urban Design Review 

 Urban Design Review is part of the review process for demolition of the detached 
garage and new parking lot in an urban design overlay.  

 The parking lot is appropriately designed.  Screening is not required due to the 
zoning district of abutting property being office zoning.   

 Zoning staff worked with the applicant to develop the site plan based on zoning 

code requirements as well as coordinating stormwater drainage from both sites. 

 The new parking lot is more efficient and is able to handle six vehicles compared 

to the current three (plus garage).   

 The demolition of the garage is considered a reasonable request since it is not a 

historic structure. 

 The demolition of the garage would not have an adverse impact on surrounding 

properties. 

 The proposed parking lot would not have an adverse impact on surrounding 

properties.  
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Applicable Zoning Code Sections: 
 

1445-15, 13:   Standards for Variances; General Standards, Public Interest 
1443:    Zoning Hearing Examiner Procedures 

 
Based on a review of the zoning code, the information provided by the applicant and the 
existing conditions; it appears that an urban design approval for the proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot construction is reasonable.  
 
Additionally, applications should demonstrate some degree of value to the public 
interest, potentially utilizing at least one of the factors provided within Section 1445-13 – 
General Standards.  This proposal is of value to the public interest, as it enhances: 
 

 (A)  Zoning, the proposal conforms to the underlying zoning district regulations 
and is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the Cincinnati Zoning 
Code. 
 

 (D)  Traffic, due to the combination of expected staff and customer visits, and the 
subject’s location embedded in a viable street grid, traffic impacts are expected 
to be accommodated by the existing street network and will not overload the 
existing adjacent streets. 

 

 (H)  Neighborhood Compatibility, the proposal is generally compatible with the 
predominant mixed-use/commercial development patterns of the surrounding 
neighborhood and will not have a material net cumulative adverse impact on the 
neighborhood; and 
 

 (J)  Adverse Effects, the proposal does not appear to have any adverse effect on 
the access to the property by fire, police, or other public services; access to light 
and air from adjoining properties; traffic conditions; or the development, 
usefulness or value of neighboring land and buildings.   

 

 (L)  Economic Benefits, the proposal indicates that this will make the overall 
office operation more attractive to customers and will help contribute to the 
viability of the office use.   

  

 (O) Private Benefits, the applicant’s investment would yield an improvement to an 
existing building and a viable parking for their growing business. 
 

 (P) Public Benefits, the public benefits realized would be adequate parking 
provided off-street rather than using public on-street parking for staff.  

 
Conversely, in reviewing for concerns with this proposal 

 (J) Adverse Effects, the applicant’s proposal will not have a material net 
cumulative adverse impact on the neighborhood, because the proposal is 
compatible with the neighborhood.  
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Consistency with Approved Plans: 
Plan Cincinnati (2012). The proposed work would be consistent with the policy principle 
to retain and expand existing businesses.   
 
Hyde Park/Mt. Lookout Interim Development Control District Analysis 
 
The City of Cincinnati recently adopted an interim development control (IDC # 81) 
district for the Hyde Park and Mt. Lookout neighborhoods.  This regulatory tool is in 
place for at least three months and would require any demolition within the IDC to be 
reviewed and approved by the city’s Planning Commission.   
 
The applicant applied for the demolition permit for the garage in October of 2017 (permit 
application 2017p09413).  The applicant’s permit request was prior to the IDC being 
adopted and thus the applicant’s request is not required to follow the IDC review 
procedures.  The applicant’s demolition request is allowed to proceed. 
 
In addition, it should be noted that it is the city’s position that the Zoning Hearing 
Examiner (ZHE) is the appropriate reviewer for this demolition request since the ZHE is 
responsible for reviewing demolition requests within the Hyde Park Square Urban 
Design Overlay District. 
 
Recommendation: 
 

1. Section 1437 – Urban Design Review- APPROVE - The proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot construction conforms to the relevant urban design 
parameters outlined in the zoning code. 

 
Findings: 

 The subject parking lot is an appropriate use for a small office use. 

 Demolition of the garage and construction of a parking lot will not negatively 
impact the surrounding properties. 
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3446 Mooney

03/15/2018
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Mooney and Zumstein parking

03/15/2018
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From: George, Louis D. [mailto:lgeorge@taftlaw.com]  
Sent: Thursday, October 08, 2015 11:40 AM 

To: Peter A. Saba, Esq. 
Subject:  

 

•  
I talked to Cindy again today.  She now understands.  The real issue with her is:  commercial creep and 
parking.  I told her to turn her attention to parking.   Commercial creep is somewhat set in stone with 
the transition zone in place (at least until  someone changes that which will happen no doubt).  She was 
shocked to learn that you offered to revert the zoning back to residential if you sold the property.  She 
was likewise upset that the objector to your reasonable offer was not a neighbor near your 
house.  When people get inflamed listening  skills go down as you know. 
 
We need to establish field of view setbacks on our driveways.   You  could be a hero if you help with 
that.  And potentially you will reconsider reverting the zoning back to residential years if you ever sell. 
 
By the way my wife is Anne Vertuca.   She has your daughter in class.   So I can be bribed to bribe 
anne.  Ha. 

 

Taft / 
  
Louis D. George, CPA 
425 Walnut Street, Suite 1800 
Cincinnati, Ohio, 45202-3957 
Tel: 513.357.9677 • Fax: 513.381.0205 
Cell: 513.378.7105 • Home Office: 513.321.3537 
lgeorge@taftlaw.com • lgeorge52@hotmail.com 

This message may contain information that is attorney-client privileged, attorney work product or 
otherwise confidential. If you are not an intended recipient, use and disclosure of this message are 
prohibited. If you received this transmission in error, please notify the sender by reply e-mail and delete 
the message and any attachments. 
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3434 Zumstein

12/02/2017
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3434 Zumstein

12/02/2017
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Smith Carnes Parking

11/29/2017
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Response to Lou George Objection 

 

1. As demonstrated by the aerial photos attached as Exhibit 1 and Exhibit 2, our plans for 

3443 Zumstein are consistent with the use of both the property located at 3446 Mooney 

Avenue and the properties neighboring 3446 Mooney.  A driveway stretching from the 

street in front, with parking for multiple vehicles in the rear of the building,  

 

2. The property located at 3446 Mooney Avenue already has a 6 feet high privacy fence 

surrounding it on all sides.  Just like the property located at 3446 Mooney Avenue, the 

property on 3443 Zumstein will also have a 6 feet high privacy fence.   

 

3. Contrary to Mr. George’s objection we are NOT adding any additional lighting.  There 

will be no more lighting than previously existed.  (As indicated below, all employees 

typically vacate the building by 6:00 p.m. on weekdays, therefore in addition to the 

presence of the privacy fence, little to any light would come from any cars that park in 

the lot.  The property receives little to no use on weekends, much less a weekend evening 

or night.)  

 

4. Contrary to Mr. George’s objection there would actually be less noise than any typical 

residential use, because the building at 3443 Zumstein gets little to no use in the evening 

or at night (all employees usually vacate the building by 6:00 p.m. on weekdays) as well 

as little to no use on weekends.   

 

5. Mr. Georges’ email form 2015 confirms (see Exhibit 3) that the real issue and concern is 

the need for additional parking in the area.  He further indicates that we would be a 

“hero” if we could help alleviate some of the parking issues on Mooney, which is exactly 

what this plan seeks to do.   

 

6. The parking that is being installed is consistent with 3443 Zumstien’s historic use as a 3 

unit apartment building.   
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CITY BULLETIN NOTICE

PUBLIC HEARING

BEFORE THE

ZONING HEARING EXAMINER 

Wednesday, June 13, 2018, at 2:30 

pm

At

Centennial II

805 Central Ave., Suite 500

Cincinnati, Ohio 45202

****

06/05/2018

CASE NUMBER:

SUBJECT PROPERTY:

Applicant:

Owner:

REFERENCE REQUEST:

ZH20180091

2623  ERIE AV

DML REALTY LTD

DML REALTY LTD

The applicant requests urban design overlay approval to 

demolish a detached garage and construct a parking lot in the rear of the property in 

conjunction with ZH20180090, and any other related relief required under the Zoning 

Code.  

ZONING DISTRICT: OL Office Limited District

Kevin Tidd

Zoning Hearing Examiner

City of Cincinnati

(513) 352-1559
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Louis D. George 
2526 Observatory Ave. 
Cincinnati, Ohio  45208 

(513) 321-3537 
ldgeorgeconsulting@outlook.com 

 
 
  

 

TO: City of Cincinnati 
 
FROM: Lou George 
 
DATE: June 12, 2018  
 
SUBJECT: Case number ZH20180091 
 

 

This memo is in response to the above City notice for zoning change which I received on 

June 11, 2018.  After a review of the proposed drawings submitted by the applicant, 

along with the conversation I had with the applicant years back when an initial zoning 

variance was requested, 3446 Mooney is opposed to the recent requested change for the 

following reasons: 

 

- During a prior year’s zoning request by the same owner, I contacted the law 

partner that was handling the matter for his firm/owner.  Due to what was 

communicated to me during that call, along with my respect for the Stangero 

family, I did not object to that change.   

- During that same conversation with the partner, I specifically talked about parking 

and that I would oppose his request if they intended to turn the site in to a parking 

lot.  We also talked about any excess lighting needed, as that would not be 

consistent with a residential environment.  He assured me no additional parking 

would be needed and no additional outside lighting would likewise be required.  

Based on those comments I told him I would not oppose that initial request. 

- I have reviewed the detail drawings submitted with this new zoning request.  The 

design submitted is a material change to what exists today and a material variance 

from what was committed to me years back.   

- It is one thing using an interior space as an office when the outside still looks like 

a residential house.  But it is another if the outside is changed to appear like a 

commercial building.  It is my opinion the later would occur if the current request 

is approved.   

 

Obviously, the partner underestimated the need for parking.  As a result of this requested 

material change in use, I do not support his request.  It violates what I believe is in the 

best interest of the property owners that were there long before the law firm purchased 

their original site on Erie.  Further, if approved this rezoning will represent a material 
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change in the enjoinment of the backyard at 3446 Mooney due to noise and lighting.  

Lastly, if this request is approved the creep will never stop.  

 

Cc:  George Vincent, Trustee     Dinsmore & Shohl    

        Chris Fister, Trustee    
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____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Hyde Park Neighborhood Council, P. O. Box 8064, Cincinnati, Ohio 45208 
Web Site: HydeParkCincinnati.org 

June 12, 2018 

 

Mr. Kevin Tidd 
Zoning Hearing Examiner  
Cincinnati, Ohio 45202 
 

Re: Zoning Hearing – 2623 Erie Avenue (ZH20180091) 

Dear Mr. Tidd: 

The Zoning Committee of the Hyde Park Neighborhood Council (HPNC) has reviewed documents 

describing the demolition of a garage and construction of a parking lot at the rear yard of the 

subject property.  The applicant also proposes to build an access drive to new parking at the rear 

of 3443 Zumstein. The applicant did not submit a professional land survey and/or a fully 

dimensioned site plan but it appears approximately one half of the access drive to the new parking 

would be located on the Erie property and one half on the Zumstein property.  

Zumstein Avenue is a residential cul-de-sac zoned SF-6.  There are no commercial uses except 

for the SSP law offices permitted by Not Withstanding Ordinance at 3443 Zumstien. All of the 

structures have residential appearance. The Zoning Committee is opposed to the demolition of 

the garage because the larger parking lot and access drive will increase the commercial 

appearance of Zumstien Avenue.  Additionally the garage partially obscures views of the parking 

lot in the rear yard of the adjacent property 2619 Erie.  We think the garage is a critical buffer 

between the commercial and residential uses. 

If the garage is demolished and substantial improvement to parking lot is approved, we believe 

the Type A buffer yard (10 feet wide between OL and SF) required by Schedule 1423-13-A must 

be implemented. As stated in §1423-11, the buffer yard standards apply to redevelopment or 

expansion of existing site ground coverage, which includes buildings, accessory uses or 

structures, parking and outdoor storage areas by more than 30 percent. It appears that the entire 

parking lot is being reconfigured and an access drive is being added.  The number of parking 

spaces increases from three (see CAGIS overhead) to six (see proposed site drawing). The 

parking alone doubles the intensity of use. The Type A buffer yard requirement would not permit 

construction of the access drive and possibly eliminate one parking space.
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____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

Hyde Park Neighborhood Council, P. O. Box 8064, Cincinnati, Ohio 45208 
Web Site: HydeParkCincinnati.org 

 

At its regular meeting on June 12, the Trustees of the HPNC passed a motion “opposing the 

demolition of the garage and if the garage is demolished, requesting the implementation of a Type 

A buffer yard at 3443 Zumstein.” 

Should you or anyone with the City have any questions, please call me on 513-243-8719/513-

608-3342. 

 

 
cc: President HPNC 

HPNC Zoning Committee 

Trustees of HPNC 
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MSD has no objection to the proposed demolition.  See response to ZH20180090 for further comments. 
 
Rob Kern 
Engineering Technical Supervisor 
Metropolitan Sewer District of Greater Cincinnati 
513-244-5588 
 

 
 
From: mail@cagisdocs.hamilton-co.org [mailto:mail@cagisdocs.hamilton-co.org]  
Sent: Friday, May 04, 2018 10:39 AM 
To: Kern, Rob <Rob.Kern@cincinnati-oh.gov> 
Subject: ProjectDox Invitation for ZH20180091 
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APPLICATION FOR WRITTEN ADMINISTRATIVE DECISION 
ZONING HEARING EXAMINER PUBLIC HEARING  

 STAFF REPORT 
 
APPLICATION #: ZH20180091 
APPLICANT:  DLM Realty Ltd. 
OWNER:  DLM Realty Ltd. 
ADDRESS:  2623 Erie 
PARCEL:  041-0004-0103 
ZONING:  OL (office) and Hyde Park Square Urban Design Overlay 
COMMUNITY: Hyde Park 
REPORT DATE: 5.11.18 
HEARING DATE: 6.13.18 
STAFF REVIEW: Weston Munzel, Zoning Plan Examiner 
 
 
Details of Zoning Relief Required: 
 
1. Sec. 1437- Urban Design Overlay Review – The proposed detached garage 

demolition and parking lot construction in the rear of the structure require an urban 
design review due to their location in the Hyde Park Square Urban Design Overlay. 

 
Existing Conditions: 
The subject property is one of two contiguous lots owned by the applicant and that are 
both proceeding through the urban design review process.  The 2623 Erie Avenue lot is 
a 50’x 132’ (6,600 SF) parcel on the edge of the Hyde Park Square business district.  
The site contains a two-story building that contains an office use.  The site has a small 
parking lot in the rear that can hold approximately three cars.  There is also a two-car 
detached garage in the rear.   
 
The Hyde Park Square area is primarily zoned CN-P (commercial neighborhood 
pedestrian) with an urban design overlay. However, OL office zoning exists to the north 
across Erie and to the west.  The areas to the east of the subject property are zoned 
CN-P (commercial) and to the south is zoned SF-6 single family.  The site to the south 
is also owned by the applicant and has a “Notwithstanding” ordinance allowing an office 
use. 
 
It should be noted that the office use allowed currently applies only to the current SSP 
law firm use.  Should the law firm cease occupancy of the building, the office use would 
cease.  Please see the following aerial and street view images that show the existing 
conditions and locational context. The subject property is outlined in red. 
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Aerial view of the subject and the two separate parcels (outlined in red). Each parcel has its own case number  

and report, but both sites are incorporated into coordinated site design.  Erie Avenue is on the top of the image. 
  Residential uses abut the subject property partially to the west and south.  
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The Erie Avenue site as viewed from Erie Avenue looking south.  

 

 
Image showing the detached garage that is proposed to be demolished on the left; and parking lot coordinated with 

new driveway on parcel to the south.  New driveway proposed where re-cycling containers are located. 
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Proposed Conditions: 
The applicant has requested an urban design review for the demolition of the existing 
detached garage and proposed parking lot revisions.  Per Section 1437 of the zoning 
code, an urban design review and approval is required for the proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot.     
 
The proposed parking lot has six spaces in the rear of the site.  Removal of the garage 
allows for a more efficient parking lot design. Please see the following images that 
outline the proposed parking lot. 
  

 
Site plan showing proposed parking lot highlighted in red. Landscaping is not required on the Erie Avenue 

lot since it abuts commercial/office zoned land to the west.   
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Site plan showing new pavement in hashed area. 

 
Urban Design Review 

 Urban Design Review is part of the review process for demolition of the detached 
garage and new parking lot in an urban design overlay.  

 The parking lot is appropriately designed.  Screening is not required due to the 
zoning district of abutting property being office zoning.   

 Zoning staff worked with the applicant to develop the site plan based on zoning 

code requirements as well as coordinating stormwater drainage from both sites. 

 The new parking lot is more efficient and is able to handle six vehicles compared 

to the current three (plus garage).   

 The demolition of the garage is considered a reasonable request since it is not a 

historic structure. 

 The demolition of the garage would not have an adverse impact on surrounding 

properties. 

 The proposed parking lot would not have an adverse impact on surrounding 

properties.  
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Applicable Zoning Code Sections: 
 

1445-15, 13:   Standards for Variances; General Standards, Public Interest 
1443:    Zoning Hearing Examiner Procedures 

 
Based on a review of the zoning code, the information provided by the applicant and the 
existing conditions; it appears that an urban design approval for the proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot construction is reasonable.  
 
Additionally, applications should demonstrate some degree of value to the public 
interest, potentially utilizing at least one of the factors provided within Section 1445-13 – 
General Standards.  This proposal is of value to the public interest, as it enhances: 
 

 (A)  Zoning, the proposal conforms to the underlying zoning district regulations 
and is in harmony with the general purposes and intent of the Cincinnati Zoning 
Code. 
 

 (D)  Traffic, due to the combination of expected staff and customer visits, and the 
subject’s location embedded in a viable street grid, traffic impacts are expected 
to be accommodated by the existing street network and will not overload the 
existing adjacent streets. 

 

 (H)  Neighborhood Compatibility, the proposal is generally compatible with the 
predominant mixed-use/commercial development patterns of the surrounding 
neighborhood and will not have a material net cumulative adverse impact on the 
neighborhood; and 
 

 (J)  Adverse Effects, the proposal does not appear to have any adverse effect on 
the access to the property by fire, police, or other public services; access to light 
and air from adjoining properties; traffic conditions; or the development, 
usefulness or value of neighboring land and buildings.   

 

 (L)  Economic Benefits, the proposal indicates that this will make the overall 
office operation more attractive to customers and will help contribute to the 
viability of the office use.   

  

 (O) Private Benefits, the applicant’s investment would yield an improvement to an 
existing building and a viable parking for their growing business. 
 

 (P) Public Benefits, the public benefits realized would be adequate parking 
provided off-street rather than using public on-street parking for staff.  

 
Conversely, in reviewing for concerns with this proposal 

 (J) Adverse Effects, the applicant’s proposal will not have a material net 
cumulative adverse impact on the neighborhood, because the proposal is 
compatible with the neighborhood.  
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Consistency with Approved Plans: 
Plan Cincinnati (2012). The proposed work would be consistent with the policy principle 
to retain and expand existing businesses.   
 
Recommendation: 
 

1. Section 1437 – Urban Design Review- APPROVE - The proposed garage 
demolition and parking lot construction conforms to the relevant urban design 
parameters outlined in the zoning code. 

 
Findings: 

 The subject parking lot is an appropriate use for a small office use. 

 Demolition of the garage and construction of a parking lot will not negatively 
impact the surrounding properties. 
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1      MR. TIDD:  Now, this is June 13, 2018

2 session of the Zoning Hearing Examiner Docket.

3 My name is Kevin Tidd.  I am the zoning

4 hearing examiner for the City of Cincinnati

5 and I'll preside over the hearing.  The cases

6 before us today are Case No. ZH021800090,

7 property at 3443 Zumstein Avenue, and 2623

8 Erie Avenue, Case No. ZH20180091.  We're going

9 to hear both cases together because they

10 contain similar issues of facts of law.  The

11 purpose of this hearing is to allow applicants

12 and opposing parties to testify and to offer

13 any evidence in testimony.  This hearing will

14 follow the rules, follow the zoning code and

15 supplemental rules of the zoning hearing

16 examiner.  All testimony and evidence that the

17 applicant or any opposing party wish to offer

18 must be presented at this hearing.

19      The hearing will proceed as follows:  The

20 applicant, the applicant's attorney or the

21 applicant's agent will first present the

22 applicant's case.  The public will have an

23 opportunity to speak after the applicant has

24 presented its case.  If there's more than one

25 person opposing the application, those persons
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1 should decide among themselves a length of time

2 each would like to speak.  If an opposition

3 group's in attendance, I may request a

4 spokesperson to be chosen to speak on behalf of

5 the group.  If the applicant is represented by

6 an attorney, the applicant's attorney may

7 cross-examine any person who's testified at the

8 hearing.  If the party of record is represented

9 by an attorney, the attorney for the party of

10 record may present witnesses after the

11 applicant has presented its case and may

12 cross-examine the person who is testifying at

13 the hearing.

14      In the event that any party testifies or

15 is (inaudible) opposition to the application,

16 the applicant shall have an opportunity to

17 rebut the testimony in order (inaudible).

18 After the applicant has been given an

19 opportunity to rebut any testimony and

20 (inaudible) opposition, any attorney for a

21 party of record will not (inaudible) closing

22 statement.

23      Finally, the applicant will have an

24 opportunity to make a closing statement.  After

25 all presentations have been made, I'll close
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1 the hearing and a decision will be expected

2 within two weeks.  I may limit or exclude any

3 testimony that I deem irrelevant or outside the

4 scope of the application being considered.  I

5 may (inaudible) the speaker to ask questions,

6 make any comments.  I may also to refuse to

7 consider hearsay testimony or documents.  This

8 means if you have (inaudible) want to produce

9 such a statement made by a person who is not

10 present at this hearing or a document that

11 includes a certain person who is not at the

12 hearing.  A sign-in sheet is located on the

13 table.  Please be sure to sign in.  All persons

14 who might be testifying will be sworn now.  So

15 I will swear everybody in except for the

16 attorneys in the room.

17 (AT THIS TIME, MR. TIDD ADMINISTERED OATH)

18      MR. TIDD:  And lastly, I should suggest.

19 This is a little of a peculiar situation, Mr.

20 Saba.

21      MR. SABA:  Right.

22      MR. TIDD:  Are you going to make legal

23 arguments?  Are you going to present as a

24 witness, both?

25      MR. SABA:  I would be presenting both.
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1 So I'm going to present some of the

2 applicants, just in terms of explanation, but

3 I also make some legal arguments as well, so.

4 I know it's sort of a hybrid issue.

5      MR. TIDD:  It is hybrid.  Mr. Suder, what

6 are your thoughts on this?

7      MR. SUDER:  Maybe just swear in for

8 purposes of the evidence you're providing

9 and --

10      MR. TIDD:  That's what I was thinking.

11      MR. SABA:  I did raise my hand --

12      MR. TIDD:  I saw that you did.  What if I

13 allow you, you know, open to

14 cross-examination, you know, limit it to the

15 facts?

16      MR. SABA:  Yeah, that's fine.

17      MR. TIDD:  Okay.  That's agreeable to

18 everybody here?  Okay.  Who's going to start

19 off for us today?  Would you guys both mind

20 identifying yourselves?

21      MR. SABA:  Sure.  Peter Saba.

22      MR. NYE:  Jeff Nye.

23      MR. TIDD:  We do have one other attorney

24 in the room.  Mr. Suder, could you identify

25 your name?
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1      MR. SUDER:  Oh, I'm sorry.  Sean Suder on

2 behalf of Scott Hassell and Julia Anixt.

3      MR. TIDD:  Okay.  I do want to let you

4 both know because both sides are represented

5 by attorneys, you do have the ability to

6 cross-examine any witnesses.  So, just keep

7 that in mind as we go forward.  I will allow

8 the applicant to present its case and then I

9 will allow Mr. Suder cross-examination of the

10 other witnesses.  Mr. Suder will present his

11 case.  At that point I'll open it up to the

12 public.  If anyone has any comment, again, the

13 applicant and any attorneys have the right to

14 cross-examine any witnesses.  You both have an

15 opportunity to -- well, the applicant has an

16 opportunity to rebut and then you also have an

17 opportunity to close later.  You can do -- if

18 you would like, you can give Mr. Suder the

19 opportunity to close and you can rebut and

20 close at the same time.  I'll give you that

21 option.  It's up to you.  You don't have to

22 tell me now.  You can wait until we get to

23 that portion of the hearing.  I just wanted to

24 make sure it was clear so everybody knew the

25 situation we have, all right?  The applicant?
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1      MR. SABA:  We're here today on an

2 application that is twofold, as you pointed

3 out.  One is the application for the

4 demolition of a garage at 2623 Erie Avenue and

5 expansion of the existing parking that is

6 there right now.  The second application is

7 for the addition of a driveway and parking in

8 the rear of 3443 Zumstein Avenue.  With

9 respect to those two applications, the big

10 reason we're doing that is because a

11 long-standing problem that's existed in Hyde

12 Park.  It has been long-recognized that

13 there's a desperate need for additional

14 parking in the Hyde Park Square area.  In

15 December 1984, the Hyde Park Square

16 Conservation Plan was issued and specifically

17 noted that parking is a major concern of the

18 businesses in Hyde Park Square.  Parking

19 conditions, as they now exist, are a

20 substantial irritant to not only the shoppers

21 and businesses, but to the residents living

22 immediately adjacent to the square.

23 (Inaudible) recommended a number of parking

24 spaces in relation to the (inaudible) area of

25 the business district.  There's a current
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1 shortage of spaces.  Investigation revealed a

2 number of facets to the problem.  The major

3 ones being, and these are some of the ones

4 that were listed, few companies furnished

5 parking areas and bumper-to-bumper parking on

6 both sides of the street in front of

7 residences on Zumstein and Edwards.  The goals

8 and objectives that were identified way back

9 in 1984 were to improve parking conditions by

10 increasing the number of off-street parking

11 spaces.  And that problem still exists today.

12 We provided an e-mail from Lou George that was

13 dated October 8, 2015.  And he is the owner of

14 the property at 3446 Mooney.  In that e-mail

15 he specifically indicates and refers to that

16 we would be heroes if we could assist with the

17 problems that -- the parking problems that

18 they are having on Mooney.  It's indicative of

19 the fact that the parking problems in the Hyde

20 Park Square area still exist today and need

21 help being alleviated.  The plans that were --

22 I believe we provided a number of photos that

23 show the garage at issue that are included in

24 our packet.

25      The plans that we had proposed with
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1 respect to 2623 Erie, although the garage is

2 currently there, it occupies the space, it

3 takes up approximately three parking spaces, it

4 actually only holds one vehicle.  And because

5 of the odd configuration of a parking area

6 created by the garage, from a practical

7 standpoint, usually only three cars are parked

8 there, in part because of blockage of the

9 garage or apprehension of blockage of the

10 garage, and so the garage generally goes

11 unused.  And so because of that, with the

12 removal of the garage itself, we are able to

13 add three additional spaces to that lot and

14 expand it to six cars that could be used.

15      Additionally, if the garage is removed,

16 the adjacent property at 2620 Erie Avenue --

17 and if you look at -- there's photos there that

18 show the back of the garage.  And if you look

19 at the photos in the back of the garage, you

20 can see that there's one space that goes unused

21 because the garage actually encroaches right on

22 the property line.  If the garage were

23 demolished, it actually would be an additional

24 space that could be used in that lot as well.

25 So it would also add some off-street parking to
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1 that neighboring lot.

2      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, how many parking

3 spaces are there in that area right now?

4      MR. SABA:  In the area, in that existing

5 lot?

6      MR. TIDD:  Yeah.

7      MR. SABA:  I think they have seven and it

8 would go to eight.  I'm sorry, eight and it

9 would go to nine, excuse me.

10      MR. TIDD:  Okay.

11      MR. SABA:  So with respect to that, the

12 intention is to go ahead and have that garage

13 demolished.  Demolition of the garage does

14 comply with the zoning code.  We are here

15 today on the UDOD hearing.  I believe

16 Mr. Suder, I just happened to receive his

17 objection that he wrote and filed today.  It

18 raises the issue of whether or not we comply

19 with 14307-09.  Our position is we do comply

20 with 14307-09.  With respect to the basis for

21 demolition, he proposes a rather restrictive

22 and unreasonable reading of that section of

23 the ordinance, which is D1 under 14307-09,

24 which our position is it's completely

25 incorrect.  But a proper reading of that
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1 ordinance would indicate we generally comply

2 with at least two provisions of that.  The

3 structure does not contribute to the

4 architectural quality of the district.  It is

5 not -- it offers no architectural value.  It

6 is not something that provides any value in

7 terms of a historical building in any form

8 whatsoever.  And also on the third bullet

9 point of that provision, demolition is

10 necessary to provide parking under other uses

11 in a manner specified in the Urban Design

12 Plan, which as we indicated, this is

13 additional parking long-standing consistent to

14 provide additional off-street parking with

15 that plan.

16      Two, since we are on the issues of the

17 demolition and value, I think there was an

18 issue raised, which I think there is, you know,

19 basis for that would outweigh the additional

20 value of additional parking spaces.  I think

21 the residents argued and Mr. Hassell

22 specifically that, well, we need that building

23 there because it blocks the other parking areas

24 and we don't want to look at parking areas.

25 And so they said it's a screen, which I think
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1 is an unreasonable indication that that's a

2 reason why to keep it there.  The -- I believe

3 he raised the issue, well, we never want to

4 look at 14 parking spaces, nobody ever would.

5 The fact of the matter is -- and we provided a

6 photograph of the file today that shows the

7 aerial view of the property immediately

8 adjacent to the Erie property.  And you can see

9 across the street from that is a 14-space

10 parking lot.  It's been there for well over 40

11 years.  The majority of these residents moved

12 there after that parking lot was put in place.

13 It obviously didn't deter their interest into

14 moving into the area.  It didn't deter any of

15 the economic values that were created for their

16 properties.  It did not create any problems

17 whatsoever, nor would the removal of this

18 garage or the suggestion that somebody would

19 see 14 cars there in one lot somehow detract

20 from either the neighborhood itself, the value

21 of the buildings in that fashion whatsoever.

22 So the argument that it's necessary for some

23 screen is unfounded in that situation.

24      The plan as we've submitted it also would

25 provide adequate -- it complies with all the
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1 zoning requirements that are necessary for that

2 property.  I believe Mr. Hassell in his letter

3 that he filed tries to raise some additional

4 issues which, quite frankly, rely on a bit

5 distorted position -- distorted interpretation

6 of the zoning code.  He first suggests that

7 somehow we are in violation of the

8 notwithstanding ordinance and/or in violation

9 of the requirements of SF-6 in terms of -- I'm

10 sorry, I take that back.  That was not his

11 objection.  His objection on the demolition,

12 his formal objection, dealt with the issue of

13 he felt that under 1423-11 that we were

14 required to have a buffer yard that's a larger

15 type of buffering yard.  His interpretation

16 relies on a misreading of that ordinance.  He

17 specifically refers to more than 30 percent of

18 the property under Section D and that the

19 increasing in parking spots constitutes a

20 change in use.  Both of those rely upon a

21 misread of that ordinance.  What 1423-11

22 specifically refers to under Section B, and

23 I'll read that into the record, it refers to

24 redevelopment.  Redevelopment or expansion of

25 an existing site ground coverage (inaudible)
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1 uses or structures, parking and outdoor storage

2 areas by more than 30 percent, not including

3 single-family dwellings.  It's talking about an

4 increase in existing site ground coverage.

5      With respect to the demolition of the

6 garage and the replacement of that with

7 asphalt, that is not an increase or any change

8 whatsoever in existing site ground coverage.

9 It would be a zero percent change.  So that

10 section is inapplicable to the demolition on

11 2623 Erie Avenue.

12      The second provision he refers to is

13 change in use.  He suggests that the expansion

14 of three parking spaces to potentially six

15 parking spaces is somehow a change in use for

16 that property under that statute section.

17 That's incorrect.  Under 1423-11C it

18 specifically defines what's included in the

19 concept of a change in use.  And it refers to a

20 change in use from a residential use to a

21 commercial use, from a commercial use to a

22 manufacturing use, and in some cases from a

23 manufacturing use to a commercial use.  The

24 increase in parking spaces from three to six

25 does not fall under a change in use under that
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1 section.  So the argument that we would be

2 required to install an additional buffer zone

3 is incorrect.  It relies upon a distorted

4 interpretation of that statute (inaudible).

5      So with respect to that, I think referring

6 back to the analysis made by the zoning

7 administrator, they did acknowledge that the

8 design is appropriate and complies with the

9 terms of the zoning code.  The demolition of

10 garage considered (inaudible) request since

11 it's not a historical structure.  The

12 demolition of the garage would not have an

13 adverse impact on surrounding properties and

14 the proposed parking lot would not have an

15 adverse impact on surrounding properties.  And

16 for that reason, they did support approval of

17 the demolition of the garage.  It was also

18 supported by MSD with respect to that

19 demolition as well.

20      With respect to the parking lot on

21 Zumstein, the plan is also -- that is property

22 that through the notwithstanding ordinance that

23 was issued by the city, we have the right to

24 use that for office purposes.  It is originally

25 a three-family building, and it was a
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1 three-family existing already within SF-6.  And

2 it will always be a three-family if ever we

3 would stop using it for an office.  So its

4 continued use in existence as a three-family,

5 three units, and that's SF-6, continues to be

6 there.

7      The parking that's proposed fully complies

8 with (inaudible).  The intention is that there

9 would be a driveway that is separately on the

10 Zumstein property and continues back on the

11 Zumstein property and would include six parking

12 spaces in the rear of the Zumstein property.

13 To make it clear, there would be an adequate

14 buffer, as required by zoning, on all

15 perimeters of the property that is adjacent to

16 residential properties.  Additionally, there

17 would also be a six-foot privacy fence that

18 runs around the perimeter of the parking

19 adjacent to any residential properties to

20 properly screen it from their view.

21      With respect to the plans themselves, as I

22 indicated, it does fully comply with the zoning

23 requirements.  The argument that was made, and

24 I believe Mr. Hassell made this argument, that

25 we are not permitted to put in parking because
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1 the notwithstanding ordinance indicated that we

2 otherwise have to comply with SF-6 zoning

3 requirements.  And the fact of the matter is,

4 the placement of the six parking spaces in the

5 rear of the building is not only compliant with

6 SF-6 zoning, it would also be consistent with

7 the mandate of the SF-6 parking requirements.

8 Under 1425-19, Section A, SF-6 zoning is

9 required to have two parking spaces for every

10 unit.  In that situation, we have a three-unit

11 apartment building.  It would have six spaces

12 total, compliant with what's mandated by

13 1425-19A.  So the argument that SF-6 somehow

14 doesn't permit parking is completely misplaced.

15      He does make some sort of construed

16 argument that, well, if you're parking to go

17 into an office, that's not parking to go into a

18 residence.  SF-6 doesn't distinguish between

19 that type of parking.  It allows for parking,

20 two spaces per unit.  The only restriction that

21 you see in SF-6 really deals if you're going to

22 park commercial vehicles.  We have no intention

23 of parking commercial vehicles in that space.

24 It's defined by a statute as something that has

25 either a commercial license or it's otherwise
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1 used for the handling of freight, what we know

2 to be construction trucks or otherwise.  That

3 is not our intention except as otherwise

4 provided by SF-6, which allows you to do that

5 if you're doing work on the property or other

6 construction.  But that's not the intended use.

7 So the parking that we're placing there is not

8 only compliant with SF-6, it's mandated by

9 SF-6.  And so we're compliant with the terms of

10 the notwithstanding ordinance.

11      The suggestion -- his second objection is

12 based upon the fact that we have a driveway.

13 He suggests that under 1425-35, that we're not

14 permitted to have that driveway and, again,

15 tries to rely upon the argument that parking is

16 not permitted under SF-6.  And the reality is,

17 yes, parking is permitted and our driveway will

18 be used for that purpose.  And that's why the

19 intention of putting this parking lot in there

20 is still consistent with the plan of SF-6 and

21 what we're trying to achieve there.

22      So the position is consistent with what

23 the zoning administrator found, is that it

24 complies with all the zoning requirements.  It

25 has all the buffering that's needed.  It has
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1 the screening that's required for that parking

2 lot.  So there is no justifiable basis for not

3 allowing that parking to be installed.  It is

4 something that's in desperate need in the Hyde

5 Park area.

6      A -- there was, and we filed a response to

7 that objection that was filed by Mr. George.

8 He was concerned about additional lighting, and

9 he also expressed a concern about noise.  And

10 the reality is in terms of additional lighting,

11 we're not adding any lighting to this

12 construction.  There's no additional lighting

13 that's being placed in this parking, nor would

14 there be any fear of additional lighting or

15 noise.  The reality is because we use it as an

16 office, the building is essentially vacant by

17 6:00 p.m. every evening, and rarely is somebody

18 ever there on weekends.  So you have very

19 little issue of noise, particularly in the

20 evening, very little issue of even headlights

21 adding to any additional lighting because for

22 the most part, people are gone by dusk or

23 before dawn.  So there is no legitimate basis

24 for any of those concerns.  And yet,

25 coincidentally and ironically, it actually
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1 addresses Mr. George's biggest concern about

2 can you help us with the parking on Mooney,

3 which is what this is designed to do, is to

4 remove our employees or other people from

5 having to park on Mooney so that they could go

6 ahead and park in this building and alleviate a

7 long-recognized problem which exists today.

8      The other issue that was raised -- one

9 second.  I think in terms of -- there were some

10 comments made about is it consistent with the

11 plan of the city.  Certainly it's consistent

12 with the Hyde Park Square Conservation Plan

13 that's identified in a document of 1984.  And

14 it's also consistent with Plan Cincinnati 2012.

15 As we look at page 77, (inaudible) under Plan

16 Cincinnati 2012, it talks about we need a

17 broader approach to include strategies to

18 revitalize our neighborhood business districts

19 in helping our existing businesses grow and

20 succeed.

21      Also as indicated on pages 102 to 104,

22 retention and expansion of Cincinnati's

23 existing businesses will be our primary focus,

24 to expand the (inaudible) will nurture our

25 small and medium-sized businesses to help them
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1 expand and make Cincinnati their permanent

2 home.  And that's the goal here.  And that's

3 why it's consistent with the Plan Cincinnati

4 2012, is what we're exactly trying to do, is to

5 maintain our ability to have our presence in

6 Hyde Park Square for our small business to

7 continue to grow.  For all those reasons, we'd

8 ask for both applications to be approved.

9 Obviously, we'll reserve comment for a later

10 time on rebuttal or otherwise.  Thank you.

11      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Suder, do

12 you have any Cross based on any facts that

13 were --

14      MR. SUDER:  Yeah.

15      MR. SABA:  And actually, I do have two

16 witnesses to call.  So that's just my --

17      MR. TIDD:  Oh, I'm sorry.  I thought you

18 were done with your presentation.

19      MR. SABA:  No.  No.  No.  I'm sorry.

20      MR. TIDD:  At this point, yeah, you can

21 present your witnesses.

22      MR. SABA:  Okay.  I would like to present

23 Joe Allen.

24      Joe, could you go ahead and state your

25 name for the record, please?
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1      MR. ALLEN:  Joseph M. Allen.

2      MR. SABA:  And could you explain your

3 background, training, experience and

4 education?

5      MR. ALLEN:  I'm with Development

6 Planning, Incorporated.  I'm a civil engineer,

7 professional engineer, professional land

8 surveyor in doing site development type of

9 work concerning drainage, parking, paving for

10 over 30 years in the Greater Cincinnati area.

11      MR. SABA:  And you were retained by the

12 owners of the property at 3443 Zumstein and

13 2623 Erie to do a study in the design to make

14 sure that surface water is adequately

15 handled --

16      MR. ALLEN:  That's correct.

17      MR. SABA:  -- on those properties; is

18 that correct?

19      MR. ALLEN:  Yes.

20      MR. SABA:  And can you just explain the

21 process that you went through and what you did

22 in order to do that?

23      MR. ALLEN:  Yes.  We had -- after

24 determining what work was going to be done, we

25 designed a storm system that would pick up the
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1 water from the parking areas and run it out to

2 the sewer system on Zumstein Road.

3      MR. SABA:  And is it your understanding

4 that the design that you developed adequately

5 complies with MSD requirements?

6      MR. ALLEN:  Yes, it's in accordance with

7 MSD's requirements.

8      MR. SABA:  Did you work with them to

9 urbanly develop that plan?

10      MR. ALLEN:  Yes.

11      MR. SABA:  And so with respect to any

12 concerns anybody would have about accounting

13 for any surface water that would come under

14 those respective properties, even after

15 construction and development, all those

16 concerns would be addressed by the respective

17 plan you developed; is that correct?

18      MR. ALLEN:  That's correct.

19      MR. SABA:  That's all the questions I

20 have.

21      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder, do you have any

22 Cross?

23      MR. SUDER:  No, Your Honor.

24      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba?

25      MR. SABA:  I would call Allen Zahumensky.
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1      Allen, would you go ahead and state your

2 name for the record?

3      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Allen Zahumensky,

4 Pinnacle Paving & Sealing.

5      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And were you contacted

6 with respect to assisting with creating this

7 and performing this project that's being

8 proposed here today?

9      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes.

10      MR. SABA:  And can you explain the

11 intentions of you, as the contractor, with

12 respect to both the approval process and

13 the -- how this project would be performed?

14      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  We -- we came down here

15 to apply for a permit multiple times with

16 different sets of drawings and then -- or

17 attempting to be hired to perform the work to

18 install the parking lot.  I have 25 years

19 experience here in Cincinnati, Cincinnati guy

20 my whole life, and we build and maintain

21 parking lots.

22      MR. SABA:  And is the intention that this

23 facility would be installed in a workmanlike

24 manner, in compliance with all the permits

25 that were issued or hopefully will be issued
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1 with respect to this property?

2      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes, it will be

3 installed per the drawings, per the inspection

4 of, I guess, the permits, so demolition of the

5 garage and installation of the parking lot.

6 We're also going to install the drain.  We're

7 not going to do the actual tap.  I believe

8 that's going to be done by a plumber.

9      MR. SABA:  That's all the questions I

10 have.

11      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder, any Cross?

12      MR. SUDER:  No, Your Honor.

13      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.

14      MR. SABA:  Actually, I have one more

15 question, if I can call Mr. Zahumensky back

16 up?

17      With respect to -- just to clarify one

18 issue in the installation of the parking lot

19 being put in at both Zumstein and Erie, is

20 there any difference between what you would be

21 doing and how you would be installing it if it

22 were residential or if it were commercial?

23      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  No.  I mean, we're

24 basically going to be digging up ground,

25 subgrade, grassy area, installing gravel and
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1 blacktop.  Same as we would if we were doing a

2 driveway or an expansion on a driveway.  I

3 mean, it's going to be the same process.

4      MR. SABA:  Okay.  Thank you.  That's all

5 I have.

6      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

7      MR. SUDER:  I just had one question about

8 the installation for Mr. Zahumensky; is that

9 right?

10      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes, sir.

11      MR. SUDER:  Hi, I'm Sean Suder on behalf

12 of Scott Hassell and Julie Anixt who live on

13 Zumstein.  They had asked me to be here on

14 their behalf today.  My question is, is the

15 plan -- are you aware if the plan includes

16 joining the two parking lots with pavement or

17 is there going to be a separation between the

18 two parking lots?

19      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  I believe they're going

20 to join at one point where the existing rock

21 wall is because there's a height variation

22 there.  So I believe there's removal of the

23 rock wall and it's going to connect in that

24 area of the parking lot from Erie to the

25 driveway to Zumstein.
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1      MR. SUDER:  So you will do some grading

2 to --

3      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes.

4      MR. SUDER:  -- flatten that out so that

5 you can drive between the two lots?

6      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes.  And it's all going

7 to be on the drawing, the drawings that

8 eventually are approved or not.  We're going

9 to put it in per the engineer drawing.

10      MR. SUDER:  Great.  Okay.

11      MR. SABA:  I have a follow-up question.

12      MR. TIDD:  Wait.  Hold on.  Mr. Suder?

13      MR. SUDER:  That's all I have.  Thank

14 you.

15      MR. SABA:  Just to clarify, I think

16 Mr. Suder asked you so that people could drive

17 between those two lots.  There's actually

18 parking blocks that will block those spots

19 where you're talking about where the rock wall

20 will be removed, correct?

21      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Yes.

22      MR. SABA:  So people will not be able to

23 drive through the parking lot.  So there will

24 be parking spaces that preserve that driveway

25 back to Zumstein, correct?
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1      MR. ZAHUMENSKY:  Correct.

2      MR. SABA:  That's all I have.

3      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Saba, do

4 you have any additional witnesses?

5      MR. SABA:  No, that's all the evidence I

6 have.

7      MR. TIDD:  Okay.  At this point, I'm

8 going to allow Mr. Suder to present his case.

9      MR. SUDER:  I just have some questions

10 for Mr. Saba.

11      MR. TIDD:  Sure.

12      MR. SUDER:  Good afternoon.  On the

13 parking lot, let's start with the parking lot.

14      MR. SABA:  Sure.

15      MR. SUDER:  Do you intend -- is it your

16 intent to use the parking lot on Zumstein for

17 the offices -- to serve the offices on Erie

18 Avenue?

19      MR. SABA:  It will primarily be for the

20 office on Zumstein in that area that people

21 will work in that building.  That will be the

22 primary intention.

23      MR. SUDER:  But from time to time,

24 someone working in the other building may park

25 over on Zumstein?
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1      MR. SABA:  It there a chance of that?

2 It's possible.  It's possible that somebody

3 random comes and parks there, you know.  I

4 don't know.  I know from time to time when

5 we're not there on weekends, people will show

6 up and park there.

7      MR. SUDER:  So what's your plan for

8 policing that so we don't have folks parking

9 there who are not entitled to park there as

10 employees of SSP?

11      MR. SABA:  You're saying to restrict it

12 to SSP employees and clients only?

13      MR. SUDER:  Correct.  Yes.

14      MR. SABA:  We would anticipate that there

15 would at least be a (inaudible) sign that

16 might be up and placed on there in conforming

17 with zoning requirements and that is

18 (inaudible).  So that would be the primary

19 method for policing that, making sure that

20 it's not (inaudible).  I think to an extent,

21 you can comply with some of the businesses in

22 the past or some events in the past that they

23 needed some additional parking (inaudible).

24 So I think it depends on the circumstance.

25      MR. SUDER:  But your intent is not to
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1 build the Zumstein parking lot to provide

2 off-site parking to the Erie Avenue office

3 building?

4      MR. SABA:  No.  Our real intent is

5 (inaudible) put the second driveway in.  We

6 want that to be a separate parking lot in and

7 of itself.  We recognize that to be a separate

8 building.  Our long-term investment is that

9 that building is separate from itself.  The

10 Erie building is separate from itself.  So

11 that's why the -- there was a plan at one

12 point to try and combine that.  That's why we

13 tried to work with zoning and work with them

14 to make sure we could fit that driveway in

15 separately.  So the intention is making sure

16 it has its own separate driveway and its own

17 separate parking.

18      MR. SUDER:  So why are you removing the

19 rock wall and joining the pavement between the

20 two parking lots then?

21      MR. SABA:  So that's joining because

22 that -- one, it's with respect to a water

23 issue and the other is making sure we have

24 adequate -- the property line runs into that

25 rock wall, is my understanding.  And so part
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1 of the Zumstein property has that rock wall.

2 And to make sure we've adequately (inaudible)

3 a driveway around back, the rock wall would be

4 removed.  And so it allows the cars to pass

5 through the (inaudible) and then that driveway

6 would be preserved by the parking blocks and

7 replaced in that other property (inaudible).

8      MR. SUDER:  And are the parking blocks

9 currently affixed to the pavement or could

10 they be moved?

11      MR. SABA:  Well, our intention is to

12 permanently affix them to preserve those

13 parking spaces and to preserve the driveway

14 itself.  If somebody would park too far

15 forward, it'd block the driveway.  So we don't

16 want that to happen.

17      MR. SUDER:  Okay.  You said the purpose

18 of this project is to allow for growth?

19      MR. SABA:  Uh-huh.

20      MR. SUDER:  For growth for your firm in

21 Hyde Park, right?

22      MR. SABA:  Right.

23      MR. SUDER:  So if you're planning on

24 growing, are you planning on filling up these

25 spots and then adding more employees and more
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1 cars to the public right-of-way?  Wouldn't

2 that be logical, that if you're going to grow,

3 these spots will be filled and you'll continue

4 to overcrowd Mooney and Zumstein, so that this

5 really won't impact anything in the plans to

6 grow, right?

7      MR. SABA:  I think it's to grow

8 consistent with the parking and space that we

9 have.  So we would grow, be able to provide

10 for that.  We would provide more parking than

11 what we currently have right now and grow into

12 that.

13      MR. SUDER:  But would the additional

14 parking be filled up on a regular basis now by

15 your current employees and clients?

16      MR. SABA:  The amount we're bringing?

17 No, it wouldn't.

18      MR. SUDER:  It would not?

19      MR. SABA:  It would not be based on the

20 number of people we currently have

21 (inaudible).

22      MR. SUDER:  So you don't really need it

23 at this point?

24      MR. SABA:  No, we do need it for the

25 growth that we're doing.  And we do -- is it
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1 filled from time to time?  Yeah, it's filled

2 from time to time.  So we would grow into

3 that, correct.  So we have clients, a lot of

4 clients that park in the street.  We have a

5 lot of employees -- that's where our employees

6 park, on the street.  So from that standpoint,

7 we would be able to alleviate some of that.

8      MR. SUDER:  And how many cars do you

9 think?  It's not going to be full all the

10 time.  It's not necessary to meet your current

11 needs.  It's only necessary for future needs.

12 How many cars are you really pulling off the

13 streets then, in your estimation?

14      MR. SABA:  I would say at least seven or

15 so.

16      MR. SUDER:  How many people are working

17 in the Erie building currently?

18      MR. SABA:  How many people are working in

19 the Erie building currently?

20      MR. SUDER:  Yeah.  Do you have an idea?

21      MR. SABA:  Eight people working there.

22      MR. SUDER:  How many parking spots are on

23 that property --

24      MR. SABA:  Six.

25      MR. SUDER:  It would go to six.
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1 Currently there are three; is that right?

2      MR. SABA:  Three, that's right.

3      MR. SUDER:  So three to six.  And then on

4 the Zumstein property, how many people work in

5 that building?

6      MR. SABA:  Four.

7      MR. SUDER:  Four.  Okay.  And you would

8 have six spots there.  (Inaudible) now?

9      MR. SABA:  Zero.

10      MR. SUDER:  Zero.  Now, on the garage,

11 did either of your applications seek a

12 variance from any provision of the zoning

13 code?

14      MR. SABA:  Neither one seek a variance

15 from a provision of the zoning code.  No, I

16 don't believe we did.  I don't think we were

17 required any variance from the zoning code.

18      MR. SUDER:  You specifically requested

19 permission of the UDOD?

20      MR. SABA:  UDOD, that's correct.

21      MR. SUDER:  And you would agree the

22 property is located in Urban Design Overlay

23 District No. 4 --

24      MR. SABA:  That's correct.

25      MR. SUDER:  -- Hyde Park -- what's it
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1 called, Hyde Park Square Business District,

2 right?

3      MR. SABA:  Correct.

4      MR. SUDER:  And you read from the staff

5 report earlier about the recommendation that

6 they made.  But they didn't recommend -- I'm

7 sorry, they didn't review based upon what you

8 read there, they didn't review any of the

9 Urban Design Overlay District standards in

10 making that recommendation, did they?

11      MR. SABA:  Well, they specifically

12 referenced that they did.  And it's consistent

13 with 1437, so it should be approved.  So I

14 think to say that they didn't would be

15 incorrect.

16      MR. SUDER:  But they -- look at the staff

17 report.  Do you want to pull that out?  Do you

18 have a copy of it?

19      MR. SABA:  Yeah.

20      MR. SUDER:  I believe it's page 6.

21      MR. SABA:  Which one are you on?

22      MR. SUDER:  On the Zumstein -- 3443

23 Zumstein, page 6 of that one and then 7 of the

24 other one.  You'll agree that it says

25 applicable zoning code sections on page 6 of
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1 Zumstein's staff report and on page 7 of the

2 Erie Avenue staff report?  (Inaudible).

3      MR. SABA:  Yeah, I do see that.

4      MR. SUDER:  And underneath that it lists

5 1445-15, 13, and then 1443, correct?

6      MR. SABA:  Correct.  That's what it says.

7      MR. SUDER:  And those provisions, are

8 parts of the zoning code that relate to

9 variances --

10      MR. SABA:  Correct.

11      MR. SUDER:  -- is that correct?

12      MR. SABA:  Correct.

13      MR. SUDER:  So the staff report did not

14 consider 1437 as an applicable zoning code

15 section to this case; is that how you read

16 that?

17      MR. SABA:  No, I don't read it, because

18 if you (inaudible) it talks about the

19 recommendation.  (Inaudible) Section 1437.  So

20 it's suggested that he didn't consider it or

21 didn't review it because they didn't repeat it

22 in detail in the report (inaudible).

23      MR. SUDER:  So they didn't actually

24 include in the report an analysis of any of

25 the standards under 1437; am I right?
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1      MR. SABA:  There's not here that they

2 specifically listed separate portions of 1437.

3 They do indicate that they recommend approval

4 pursuant to (inaudible).

5      MR. SUDER:  And on 14307-09, I have a

6 copy of that statute 1437-09.  That talks

7 about the development standards in the UD

8 Overlay District.  You agree that your

9 property is located in UD No. 4?

10      MR. SABA:  Correct.

11      MR. SUDER:  And under schedule 14307-09,

12 UD No. 4 has -- there's this chart that has D1

13 at the bottom?

14      MR. SABA:  Uh-huh.

15      MR. SUDER:  And D1 is X'd which means, I

16 guess -- I presume here it means that it

17 applies, right?  Would you agree with that?

18      MR. SABA:  Correct.

19      MR. SUDER:  To the UD4?

20      MR. SABA:  Yes.

21      MR. SUDER:  And then if you go down to

22 D1, which is entitled demolition, correct?

23      MR. SABA:  Correct.

24      MR. SUDER:  It reads, demolition has been

25 ordered by the director of buildings and
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1 inspections for reasons of public health and

2 safety, and then it goes on to list five

3 additional factors.  Have -- can you tell the

4 hearing examiner or testify whether demolition

5 has been ordered by the director of buildings

6 and inspections for reasons of public health

7 and safety for that garage?

8      MR. SABA:  I don't understand that it has

9 been, but I don't think it's required.  I

10 think you're applying a misreading of the

11 statute, particularly if you compare it to

12 different sections under that same ordinance.

13      MR. SUDER:  So you agree, though, it

14 says -- we're in UDO No. 4, D1 as --

15      MR. SABA:  Correct.

16      MR. SUDER:  -- one of the development

17 standards.  And this is the category for

18 demolition.  So it doesn't --

19      MR. SABA:  Right.

20      MR. SUDER:  -- distinguish between

21 demolition of a garage or a house or anything,

22 right?

23      MR. SABA:  That's correct.

24      MR. SUDER:  It doesn't distinguish,

25 right?
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1      MR. SABA:  That's correct.

2      MR. SUDER:  But it does say D1,

3 demolition has been ordered by the director of

4 buildings and inspections for reasons of

5 public health and safety and, and can be

6 conjunctive, right?

7      MR. SABA:  And could be or and or could

8 be and, yes.  So under statute construction,

9 whether you're reading an ordinance or

10 otherwise, not specified to the contrary, and

11 can be read as or and or can be read as and.

12 There's no mandatory -- there's no shall.  If

13 you look at the other sections, prior to that

14 in that ordinance, it includes the mandatory

15 language of shall, that they shall do this and

16 they shall do that.  That's not required.

17 They talk about as a series or list of

18 events --

19      MR. TIDD:  I think this Cross-exam is a

20 little bit beyond just the facts.  You guys

21 are arguing the law at this point.

22      MR. SUDER:  We tend to do that as

23 lawyers, but we can -- I can make that

24 argument --

25      MR. TIDD:  I thought Mr. Saba might
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1 object.  I think he was enjoying himself.

2      MR. SUDER:  Well, for the record, I

3 disagree with Mr. Saba's reading and

4 interpretation, but we can make that argument.

5 And as far as questions go on the facts,

6 that's all I have.  So, thank you.

7      MR. TIDD:  You can now present your case.

8      MR. SUDER:  All right.  Well, thank you,

9 Mr. Tidd.  I appreciate your time today.  Here

10 on behalf of Scott Hassell and Julie Anixt who

11 are residents of Zumstein Avenue and they are

12 residents and owners of the property at 3434

13 Zumstein Avenue in Hyde Park.  And along with

14 us, and I'm not representing, but along with

15 the group who's opposing, as you can see from

16 Hyde Park Neighborhood Council and other

17 residents who will be speaking following

18 Mr. Hassell.

19      MR. TIDD:  Will you be presenting them as

20 witnesses?

21      MR. SUDER:  I will not, no.  The only

22 party I represent here are the Hassell and

23 Anixt family.  Essentially my arguments are

24 going to be focused on the law.  You've seen

25 my letter that I sent over this morning dated
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1 June 13th.  I also added a copy for the record

2 on the June 1, 2018 letter.  That was a

3 jurisdictional objection made on June 1st.

4 Essentially that argument is that because the

5 rights to use the Zumstein three-family were

6 granted by legislative variance, very specific

7 (inaudible) use it for an office or the SSP

8 Law Firm, that any additional rights or

9 expansion of those rights, which we believe

10 this is, would require a legislative act, an

11 amendment, if you will, to the notwithstanding

12 ordinance.  So we believe that the proper

13 venue for this review and consideration is at

14 the planning commission and city council.

15 That was submitted to the city.  The city did

16 not agree with that.  Here we are today.  But

17 we do just want to put that on the record and

18 maintain that objection.  And that's why I

19 want to make sure that that letter made it

20 into the record.

21      Additionally, as we were just -- Mr. Saba

22 and I were just discussing, we have objections

23 to their application for the demolition of the

24 garage based on we believe is a very clear -- I

25 don't think there's any reasonable or
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1 unreasonable way to read 1437-09I, demolition,

2 to be that in order for anything to be

3 demolished within the UDOD 4, that is the Hyde

4 Park Square Business District, that demolition

5 had to have been ordered by the director of

6 buildings and inspections for reasons of public

7 health and safety.

8      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder, do you think that's

9 a typo?  Do you think it was meant to be or?

10      MR. SUDER:  No, I don't, in fact, because

11 I looked at the ordinance, which is emergency

12 ordinance No. 141-2105.  And I didn't bring a

13 copy, but you can take notice of it --

14      MR. TIDD:  Because that would make it

15 more restricted than the historic district.

16      MR. SUDER:  And, look, I can't get into

17 the head of the city council when they passed

18 this in 2015.  Who knows what was going on,

19 right?  I know that Hyde Park is uber

20 protected because it is one of the great

21 neighborhoods of the city and it's got

22 wonderful residents who fight for it.  So --

23 but I did look at -- I was curious about that,

24 actually.  I looked at emergency ordinance No.

25 141-2015, I'd like you to do the same,
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1 effective July 1, 2015 and was added.  I

2 think, I don't know for sure, but I think it

3 was silent before and and is added.  And I

4 know and is added because it's underlined in

5 the ordinance.  The ordinance is a whole

6 laundry list of amendments to the zoning code

7 at the time.  So I believe and was very

8 intentional, and I believe that that's the

9 threshold requirement.  Look, it has to have

10 been declared in order -- unsafe, if you will,

11 by public health and safety standards for

12 demolition.  And that's not enough.  That's

13 not enough.  It has to have one of these other

14 things, one or more of these other things,

15 because there's an order down there on the

16 fourth bullet point.  So you would read

17 that -- how I was taught to read statutes, you

18 would read that as, look, there's the

19 threshold requirement and here are the

20 additional standards and you can meet more or

21 one of those, and then demolition in the UDOD

22 No. 4 could be approved by the zoning hearing

23 examiner.  That's the correct reading.  I

24 don't think there's a reasonable or

25 unreasonable way.  I think it's pretty plain.
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1 And I think that was the intent, based on my

2 reading of the ordinance, however I invite

3 your review of that.

4      So as far as the application for

5 demolition, there has been no assertion that

6 there has been any sort of order to tear this

7 garage down.  Mr. Saba just testified that he's

8 not aware of one and that simply they can't

9 meet D1, you know.  The demolition category in

10 the UDOD No. 4, they simply have not satisfied

11 that development requirement and development

12 standard and, therefore, there's no relief here

13 on that garage.  If someday maybe they do get

14 such an order, then they can come back to you

15 and prove one of these other things in addition

16 to that and try to get the garage demolished.

17 But as of now, they have no right to demolish

18 the garage under the law.  So we believe that

19 the -- their application for demolition must be

20 denied as a matter of law.

21      I did want to address the zoning staff

22 reports.  This is concerning to me because, you

23 know, I know the zoning staff reviewed this.

24 They came to a conclusion that all of this was

25 reasonable and that the zoning hearing examiner
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1 should approve, that there are some

2 entitlements to parking.  Everybody's entitled

3 to parking.

4      MR. TIDD:  Staff reports (inaudible).

5      MR. SUDER:  They are, but they are on the

6 record and they are -- obviously Mr. Saba

7 referred to it and read out of it in his

8 presentation, so it is germane to this

9 hearing.  And it was disturbing that the staff

10 reports both cited only variance statutes,

11 variance sections of the zoning code for

12 applicable zoning code sections.  We all know

13 14307-09 is the applicable section.  There are

14 standards that should have been reviewed and

15 should have been opined upon if they were

16 giving their opinion on those.  They were

17 completely left out.  In fact, they used the

18 wrong standards.  And so I think that the

19 staff reports should be disregarded in this

20 matter because they simply do not analyze the

21 correct sections of the zoning code that are

22 applicable to this matter.

23      Those are my legal arguments.  For all

24 those reasons and the reasons you'll hear from

25 Mr. Hassell, as a property owner, and other
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1 residents and people that care greatly about

2 Hyde Park, we believe that these applications

3 need to be denied.  And we thank you for your

4 time.

5      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, Mr. Suder.  So are

6 you going to present -- are you going to

7 present them as witnesses or are you going to

8 allow them to speak to the public portion,

9 your clients?

10      MR. SUDER:  My clients I'm happy to

11 present as witnesses.  I don't have a lot of

12 Direct Examination or anything.  Scott is

13 simply going to present the letter that he

14 submitted in his arguments.

15      MR. TIDD:  Sure.  Thank you.

16      MR. SUDER:  If you could introduce

17 yourself for the record and your address?

18      MR. HASSELL:  Scott Hassell.  I live at

19 3434 Zumstein and I own the house with my wife

20 Julie Anixt who is not able to be with us

21 today.  As we referenced, I had submitted a

22 letter yesterday, which I know you've

23 received.  Actually, I'll highlight a few of

24 the points from it instead to go through it

25 all because I know we have some timing targets
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1 to be focused on.  But in addition to the

2 points that our attorney made, I wanted to

3 call attention to several arguments from that

4 letter.  First, the notwithstanding ordinance

5 that we've talked about allowed the existing

6 (inaudible) to be used for office purposes.

7 We went through 14 months of meetings.  It was

8 about 10 public hearings, including several

9 with council, where people were quite clear

10 they wanted to protect the neighborhood, and

11 so that we were creating a very limited

12 exception for them to use the existing

13 building for office purposes, and then

14 everything else should be treated subject to

15 SF-6 zoning and for SF-6 uses.  There have

16 been apartments up in the top -- there was

17 someone living in the third floor of this

18 apartment, of this three-family.  And so I

19 think -- at the time that we went through

20 these discussions, and so I think to the

21 extent that anyone envisioned there could be

22 parking at this property, it would be for that

23 residential purpose.  So using it for

24 commercial purposes I don't think -- I mean,

25 that's not an office (inaudible).
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1      Second, the proposed driveway, as I laid

2 out, is not allowed under Section 1425-35

3 because the proposed use is not permitted.

4 It's allowed to be used for residential

5 purposes.  If they're intending to have

6 employees and customers, clients park there, I

7 would say that would not be permitted.

8      Third, on your 1423-11, B and C, if they

9 demolish the garage, by my reading of those

10 standards, that would require a type A buffer

11 between 2623 Erie and 3443.  So if you were to

12 put that kind of a buffer there, that would

13 certainly make it difficult to accomplish their

14 requirements, of their goals.

15      And then finally, Section 1437, about the

16 UDOD, the entire purpose of that is to protect

17 and enhance the physical character and improve

18 and stimulate the social character of the area.

19 That's how they set that section up.  And

20 expanding the commercial parking on this

21 residential street from three spaces to 12 is

22 going to undermine the physical and social

23 character of the neighborhood.  And so too will

24 demolishing the visual barrier to the cars that

25 are parked at 2619 Erie.
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1      And contrary to the applicant's claim,

2 their existing garage does contribute to the

3 architectural quality of the neighborhood.  It

4 is a residential garage.  It's been there as

5 part of the entire neighborhood and it helps

6 create the appearance for the entire

7 neighborhood, which the UDOD is there to

8 protect.  And demolishing it to bring it to a

9 larger asphalt parking lot where you can see 14

10 cars instead of the current three to four --

11 even if there may be a large 14-car parking lot

12 across the street, just because you have one

13 doesn't mean that adding a second one doesn't

14 affect the visual aesthetics and certainly

15 doesn't improve the physical and social

16 character of the area.

17      So for these and other reasons, which is

18 in my letter from June 12th and the

19 communications from our attorney, I ask that

20 you reject the applications for the zoning.

21      MR. SUDER:  I do have just a couple of

22 questions on Direct, if that's okay.  Mr. Saba

23 has stated that there's a parking problem on

24 Zumstein and Erie.  Is that your experience?

25 Is there a parking problem?  Is it
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1 overcrowded?

2      MR. HASSELL:  You know, certain areas are

3 busy at certain times and they're not busy at

4 other times.  Living on the streets and being

5 there at all hours of the day at different --

6 being there at any given hour on any given

7 day, yes, sometimes it's busy, sometimes it's

8 not.  That's not different from other areas.

9 So I think the way to approach this is not to

10 say that we had a single problem that we must

11 devote all resources to solving to saying we

12 have a lot of things that we're trying to keep

13 in balance here.  And balance is what's

14 important.  And we have selective readings of

15 the Hyde Park Plan from 1984 and Plan

16 Cincinnati and focus on the one that benefits

17 you and neglect the bigger picture.  So I

18 would say in total, we are okay with parking.

19 We don't need to have them convert residential

20 property into commercial space to meet that

21 aspect.  We need to look at the big picture

22 (inaudible).

23      MR. SUDER:  How long have you lived on

24 Zumstein in that house?

25      MR. HASSELL:  We have lived in that house
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1 for eight years, I believe.

2      MR. SUDER:  And you said earlier that

3 it's going to undermine the neighborhood to

4 put in, what did you say, 12 parking spaces.

5 Can you expand upon that?  How is that going

6 to undermine the neighborhood?  Mr. Saba said

7 it's going to help the neighborhood.  But why

8 as a resident do you think it's going to

9 undermine it?

10      MR. HASSELL:  When you think about Hyde

11 Park and what makes it an attractive

12 neighborhood to people, it's the beautiful

13 balance of a nice compact downtown -- nice

14 compact urban square surrounded by beautiful

15 residential streets.  And part of what makes

16 that so special is that you've got this very

17 distinct boundary between the two, and that

18 helps keep investment focused in each area and

19 helps preserve the property rights on each

20 side of that boundary.  And so if you start

21 hacking away at individual properties and

22 blurring the boundary between what's

23 residential and what's commercial, you start

24 to undermine what makes it all so special.

25 And so no one wants to move to Hyde Park
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1 because they'll be next -- no resident wants

2 to move to Hyde Park because they want to be

3 next to a parking lot that holds six cars or

4 12 cars or because they can see 14 cars near

5 the end of their street.  There may be one at

6 the current property that preceded the zoning

7 code, current zoning code, but that doesn't

8 mean that people want another one.  So that's

9 what's going to undermine, is you're hacking

10 away at that boundary that creates such a

11 wonderful neighborhood and that's why this is

12 a mistake.

13      MR. SUDER:  And how does it more

14 (inaudible) nature what their plan, in your

15 opinion, than residential?  You testified

16 earlier that three-family residents that could

17 have parking behind it.  So how does what

18 their planning make it feel more commercial to

19 you as a resident?

20      MR. HASSELL:  What they're planning makes

21 it feel more commercial because they will be

22 creating -- well, first of all, something that

23 I would be interested in hearing more about is

24 where the driveway would actually be located.

25 From the documents that were submitted, it was
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1 not clear that the entire driveway could be on

2 3443 Zumstein.  Perhaps it is, but that

3 doesn't come across as clear from the

4 documents.  And so I think if you were to --

5 if the driveway can't be put solely on the

6 Zumstein property, linking the two with a

7 driveway brings parking into the back that may

8 not otherwise be possible if this was still

9 just being used for residential purposes.  So

10 anyway, so bringing additional parking back

11 there for commercial purposes can further link

12 these properties and further hack away at that

13 boundary between the residential and the

14 commercial areas.  So that's where I think --

15 this parking lot can combine those and can

16 further undermine the boundary that's needed

17 to protect the neighborhood.

18      MR. SUDER:  I don't have anything

19 further.  Thank you.

20      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Saba, do

21 you have any Cross?

22      MR. SABA:  I do.

23      Mr. Hassell, you said no one would ever

24 want to move to an area where there's a lot of

25 pavement, parking; is that right?
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1      MR. HASSELL:  I said people do not want

2 to move to Hyde Park to be next to a parking

3 lot that's got 14 cars visible in the street

4 or if you -- just because you may have one

5 already, people don't want to have a second

6 parking lot where you can see 14 cars.  That's

7 not what Hyde Park's reputation is.  That's

8 not why people choose to move to Hyde Park to

9 be next to multiple 14-car parking lots.

10      MR. SABA:  Well -- and, first of all, you

11 agree it's not -- we referred earlier to the

12 parking lot at the Smith-Carnes Building.  It

13 was there before you moved in; is that right?

14      MR. HASSELL:  Yes.  And as I said, that

15 just because there's one, doesn't mean that

16 people would want a second parking lot like

17 that.

18      MR. SABA:  But it was not a deterrent at

19 all for you, correct, or any of the people on

20 Zumstein, right?  It didn't prevent you from

21 buying your house, correct?

22      MR. HASSELL:  Just because -- one is

23 different than two.

24      MR. SABA:  So if your house would

25 otherwise have been surrounded by parking, you
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1 wouldn't have purchased it, correct?

2      MR. HASSELL:  I mean, I don't -- people

3 don't move to Hyde Park to live in the middle

4 of --

5      MR. SABA:  Well, you'd agree that where

6 your house is situated, the amount of parking

7 that it's surrounded by was not a deterrent

8 from you buying your house, correct?

9      MR. HASSELL:  The --

10      MR. SABA:  Yes or no?  You bought your

11 house and yet it's completely surrounded by

12 parking.  It was not a deterrent for that,

13 correct?

14      MR. HASSELL:  I would not characterize my

15 house as completely surrounded by parking.  I

16 have a residence on each side of my house.

17      MR. SABA:  You live at 3434 Zumstein; is

18 that right?

19      MR. HASSELL:  That's correct.

20      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And this is an aerial

21 picture of where your house sits; is that

22 right?

23      MR. HASSELL:  Yes.

24      MR. SABA:  And so you --

25      MR. HASSELL:  I believe you got -- yeah.
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1      MR. SABA:  I got it right.  So there's a

2 large parking garage right behind your house,

3 correct?

4      MR. HASSELL:  It's a retail establishment

5 that has parking above it.

6      MR. SABA:  Yeah.  So that's -- and you

7 had no -- that didn't deter you from moving in

8 there, correct?

9      MR. HASSELL:  No, that's correct.

10      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And then you also have

11 the Hyde Park school parking lot which is one

12 more down; is that correct?

13      MR. HASSELL:  Yeah, there's one house in

14 between us and the Hyde Park school.  And that

15 is a school, not a commercial operation.

16      MR. SABA:  Well, a school's a commercial

17 operation.  People go there.  It's a business.

18 People come in and out of the business,

19 correct?

20      MR. HASSELL:  I -- no, I disagree.  A

21 school is different than a commercial

22 operation.  A school is part and parcel of the

23 community.  It's part of what makes Hyde Park

24 attractive, is a place for young families to

25 move.  It's a civic institution, so I would
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1 not describe a civic institution as a

2 business.

3      MR. SABA:  And the cars that park in the

4 civil institution, they're no different from

5 the cars that would park at our lot; is that

6 correct?

7      MR. HASSELL:  I -- if you -- I know you

8 spend a lot of time on Zumstein.  You'll note

9 that there are a lot of children who attend

10 that school during the school year and who are

11 in that parking lot.  This is not a parking

12 lot that's full of vehicles all of the time.

13      MR. SABA:  That wasn't my question.  The

14 type of cars that park at that school are the

15 same as the type of cars that we park at our

16 business, correct?

17      MR. HASSELL:  Yes, for the number of cars

18 that are actually there.  I think, you know,

19 just because something is -- this is an urban

20 school.  And so the fact that they have part

21 of their area for children, it's asphalt and

22 serves multiple purposes, I don't think this

23 is a reasonable comparison.

24      MR. SABA:  In this picture alone, there's

25 14 cars parked there; is that correct?
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1      MR. HASSELL:  I'm not counting the number

2 of cars.  But as you know, closer to Edwards

3 is where they use that space for parking, more

4 intensive use of parking.  The other areas

5 closer to where we live are very rarely --

6 very rarely have cars on them.  When the Hyde

7 Park Blast happens, you'll have cycling teams

8 that will fill that parking lot, but that is

9 not a regularly used parking area.

10      MR. SABA:  And the fact that that area --

11 it's all paved.  It's a large paved area.

12 That was not a deterrent to you buying your

13 home; is that correct?

14      MR. HASSELL:  Because it's part of a

15 school.  It's part of civic institution.

16 People like to live in neighborhoods that have

17 schools so that their children can go to

18 school in a neighborhood and have playgrounds

19 and I think's correlated with this.  It's not

20 a parking lot in the sense of what you are

21 proposing --

22      MR. SABA:  And the asphalt that would be

23 used there, it's no different than the asphalt

24 we would use at our property, correct?

25      MR. HASSELL:  You know, if you think that
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1 you're -- it would be the same type of

2 asphalt, if that's the argument you're trying

3 to make.  Yeah, I presume that the chemical

4 composition of the asphalt would be the same.

5      MR. SABA:  And with respect to the

6 driveway that we are planning for Zumstein,

7 that's no different than any other driveway

8 that you would have at your house or somebody

9 else would have at their house on Zumstein,

10 correct?

11      MR. HASSELL:  My driveway is on my single

12 parcel.  And one of the questions I have is,

13 is that driveway exclusively on 3434 Zumstein?

14      MR. SABA:  As we indicated today, the

15 intention is that that driveway would --

16      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, you really can't

17 answer his question.

18         (TALKING OVER EACH OTHER)

19      MR. SABA:  I agree.  I'm going to preface

20 the question.  Our intention is that that

21 driveway -- assume that the driveway will be

22 placed solely on Zumstein.  That is no

23 different than any driveway of anybody else on

24 Zumstein; isn't that right?

25      MR. HASSELL:  I haven't seen detailed
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1 enough plans.  I would assume that your

2 driveway would be similar to the other

3 driveways.  It would access a larger parking

4 lot.  There are no other residences on

5 Zumstein that have space for six -- that would

6 plan to put six cars either now or in the

7 future due to growth --

8      MR. SABA:  But they may have the majority

9 of their backyard paved over with porches and

10 otherwise, correct?

11      MR. HASSELL:  With porches?

12      MR. SABA:  Yeah.

13      MR. HASSELL:  I guess I don't think of a

14 porch as paving, but, you know, people can --

15 people may have it in the backyard, yeah,

16 sure.

17      MR. SABA:  In fact, the house two houses

18 down from ours on Zumstein has a large paved

19 area in the rear; isn't that right?

20      MR. HASSELL:  I'm not sure.

21      MR. SABA:  Okay.  Well, this is a picture

22 and here's our property on Zumstein.  Do you

23 see where the house two houses down has a

24 large paved area in the rear?

25      MR. HASSELL:  Okay.
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1      MR. SABA:  Okay.

2      MR. HASSELL:  I haven't been back there.

3      MR. SABA:  All right.  So how would that

4 be different from the paved area that we would

5 have at the rear of our property on Zumstein?

6      MR. HASSELL:  That is -- those are the

7 residential occupants living in a residential

8 street.  Parking there is part of being

9 residents in a neighborhood that they occupy,

10 that they're there as residents.

11      MR. SABA:  And how is it a resident --

12 are the cars that they park there any

13 different than the cars that we park at our

14 office building?

15      MR. HASSELL:  I would doubt it.  I don't

16 know.

17      MR. SABA:  Okay.  So how is our parking

18 at our office building any different from

19 their parking at that residence?

20      MR. HASSELL:  I'm glad you asked.

21 Because the notwithstanding ordinance was

22 intended to let you use the existing building

23 as office space and that was it.  Council

24 desired to protect the neighborhood from

25 further commercial expansion, including having
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1 parking in -- on that property.

2      MR. SABA:  And then otherwise pursuant to

3 the regulations provided by SF-6; is that

4 right?

5      MR. HASSELL:  I believe that's correct.

6      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And SF-6 does allow for

7 parking on the property, correct?

8      MR. HASSELL:  I -- for residential

9 purposes, is my understanding.

10      MR. SABA:  Is that what it says, only for

11 residential purposes?

12      MR. HASSELL:  It's my understanding that

13 council's intention was that parking on this

14 would be for residential purposes.

15      MR. SABA:  That wasn't my question.  My

16 question was, you said SF-6 only allows

17 parking for residential purposes --

18      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, he's not an

19 attorney.  I think we can move on from this.

20      MR. SABA:  Okay.  That's all the

21 questions I have.

22      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Are you going

23 to present another witness or --

24      MR. SUDER:  No, I think we're --

25      MR. TIDD:  That's fine.  I just wanted to
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1 make sure.  All right.  So at this point I'm

2 going to open it up to the public.  I did see

3 that a couple of people snuck in that weren't

4 sworn in.  Some of them who I know, some of

5 them I don't.  So I think the easiest way to

6 do this and just the safest way is just swear

7 everybody in and the public will begin.

8 (AT THIS TIME, MR. TIDD ADMINISTERED OATH)

9      MR. TIDD:  Can I have a show of hands who

10 would like to speak today?  Okay.  I always go

11 right to left.  I'm not really sure why, I

12 just do.

13      Sir, what is your name for the record?

14      MR. NYE:  My name is Jeff Nye.  I'm a

15 lawyer at SSP, but I want to speak as a member

16 of the public.  I don't live in Hyde Park.  I

17 come to work in Hyde Park because I like

18 working in Hyde Park.  I've been there nine

19 years.  For roughly seven of those years I've

20 had to park on Mooney, one street over,

21 because there isn't enough parking either on

22 Erie or on Zumstein or in our very small lot

23 there behind 2623 Erie.  I would love being

24 able to park off the street, so I don't have

25 to get dirty looks from the people on Mooney
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1 when I have to park in front of their house

2 every day.

3      Also, if there's a lot behind the Zumstein

4 building, it's not off-site parking for people

5 who work at Erie.  I spend most of my time in

6 the Erie building there, but I work in Zumstein

7 too.  I also work in our Anderson Township

8 office.  It's not off-site parking.  I've heard

9 a lot today about the idea that Hyde Park is a

10 community and they want to keep it a certain

11 type of community.  Well, I consider myself a

12 member of that community.  I've worked it every

13 day again for nine years.  I like working

14 there.  I like the character of the

15 neighborhood.  This isn't going to change it.

16 We're talking about putting in a similar small

17 parking lot behind the building, the neighbors

18 of which have similar small parking lots that

19 are not really visible from the street.

20 There's landscaping around to shield it.  You

21 know, from the end of Zumstein where I think

22 Mr. Hassell is, because of the existing trees

23 in the tree lawn and the existing landscaping,

24 including at 3434 Zumstein, you can't even

25 really see the garage.  I think if you took it
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1 out, you would have no idea what was behind it

2 because of the existing landscaping.  And I

3 think, you know, all this is a little

4 overwrought for no obvious reason to me.  We're

5 trying to get people off the street into

6 secluded parking behind the building so we're

7 out of the way.  You know, that's my view as a

8 member of the community who enjoys working in

9 Hyde Park.

10      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, do you have any

11 questions for Mr. Nye?

12      MR. SABA:  No.

13      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

14      MR. SUDER:  (Inaudible).

15      MR. TIDD:  I was just going to say, do

16 you want to come back in case you do --

17      MR. SUDER:  I don't either, have a Cross

18 right now.

19      MALE SPEAKER:  No, I don't have any

20 questions.

21      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, Mr. Nye.  I believe

22 everybody on this side has already spoken that

23 wanted to speak, so now we'll move to this

24 side.  Why don't we start in the front row.

25      FEMALE SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).
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1      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Good afternoon.  I get

2 to actually see you in person, Mr. Tidd.  I

3 communicate with you regularly --

4      MR. TIDD:  Quite regularly.

5      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  -- through my job as

6 the chairman of the Hyde Park --

7      MR. TIDD:  Did you come to the hearings

8 (inaudible) at all?

9      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  It's been a while.

10 It's reconfigured outside since I was here the

11 last time, so it's been a while.  My name is

12 Gary Wollenweber and I reside on Edwards Road

13 in Hyde Park.  I would like to expand a little

14 bit first --

15      MR. TIDD:  Just to clarify, are you

16 speaking on behalf of yourself and the Hyde

17 Park Neighborhood Council?

18      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  I am speaking on behalf

19 of the Hyde Park Neighborhood Council as the

20 chairman of the zoning committee, and I would

21 like to expand a little bit about the

22 communication -- on the communication that I

23 sent to you --

24      MR. TIDD:  Sure.

25      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  -- last night.  I wish
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1 I had brought a few extra copies, but I will

2 submit them to you and you can make them a

3 part of the record.  Actually, the --

4      MR. TIDD:  It's already a part of the

5 record.

6      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  And the -- well, the

7 photos I'm holding in my hand are not part of

8 the record except the first one is from page 2

9 of the staff report.  And what it shows, it's

10 an aerial view.  I believe this was a 2017

11 KAGAS photo.  It looks identical to the one

12 that's on KAGAS.  And it shows the existing

13 garage and one car parked in the 2623 Zumstein

14 parking lot.  And what I've drawn on here are

15 arrows that would show how the garage would

16 park -- would block views of the three -- up

17 to three parked cars that are in the Erie

18 parking lot from people that are in the front

19 yard of the west side of Zumstein Avenue.  The

20 garage also (inaudible) blocks the view of

21 parked cars at the rear of 2619 Erie.  I think

22 the attorney to my left here called that 2620

23 Erie at one point.  It's across the street and

24 I believe it's the funeral home.

25      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Wollenweber, would you
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1 mind showing that picture to both Mr. Suder

2 and Mr. Saba?  You don't have to necessarily

3 explain, just show it.  Got it.

4      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  And essentially I've

5 drawn arrows on here --

6      MALE SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).

7      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  -- the legend on there

8 showing how the garage would block the view of

9 those parked cars.  Exhibit 2 is essentially

10 the same thing.  It's a 2010 KAGAS aerial.  It

11 shows two cars in the rear of the Erie

12 property, and there's space there for a third

13 car.  So what is clear from this is the

14 current configuration of the parking lot can

15 accommodate up to three cars, plus the garage

16 where all three cars that are parked outside

17 the garage can come and go without being

18 blocked by another vehicle.  If there were

19 three cars there, those cars would be blocked

20 by the existing garage, much like those cars

21 would be blocked by a buffer yard, a type A

22 buffer yard, with a fence obscuring that view.

23 So, as we have spoken before, this property is

24 zoned office limited.  Adjacent to the south,

25 it's SF-6.  And if this property 2623 Erie
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1 were to be constructed anew, it would indeed

2 require a buffer yard.

3      It's (inaudible) been ands and buts and

4 fors in the calculation of whether tearing down

5 a garage and expanding the parking lot to cover

6 the footprint of the garage is whether that's

7 an expansion to garage or would it be taken as

8 a total area for all of the uses there

9 including the landscaping and everything else.

10 That's for you to figure out.  That should make

11 your decision.  But I would like to offer and

12 we will disagree on this that that's

13 100 percent increase in surface area that goes

14 with the parking lot because the proposed

15 configuration, which I'm going to submit to you

16 as Exhibit 3, shows six cars --

17      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Wollenweber, will you show

18 Exhibit 2 to both Mr. Suder and --

19      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Yes, I will.  I'll be

20 glad to.  Exhibit 3 is from page 4 of the

21 staff report.  It's the proposed site plan for

22 both properties, and the garage is missing.

23 There are now six cars in the back.  And those

24 six cars, at least four of those six cars are

25 clearly visible from the front yards of the
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1 west side of Zumstein Avenue, all the

2 residential properties to the south.  And then

3 if you go across the street and stand looking

4 west through the 2623 parking lot into the

5 2619 parking lot to the west, you can see all

6 14 cars clearly visible.  All is one large

7 parking (inaudible), but that's not the

8 current situation if that garage was there.

9 So I offer that they do not have a buffer

10 yard, but they have a garage that functions

11 very effectively as a buffer yard would

12 function.  And so I think that removing the

13 garage without replacing it with buffer yard

14 seriously changes the environmental impact of

15 the street negatively and in contrary to what

16 the zoning code incorporated in 2003 when it

17 was adopted requiring buffer yards.  So I hope

18 that when you make your decision, you will

19 take that into account.

20      Also, I was very disturbed by the site

21 plans that were submitted because the site plan

22 on page 4 clearly shows --

23      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Wollenweber, would you

24 mind showing Exhibit 3 --

25      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Yes, clearly shows the
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1 driveway from 3443 Zumstein entering into the

2 side yard of 2623 Erie so that you could not

3 use parking lot 34 -- at the rear of 3443

4 without going through the parking lot and

5 access driveway of 2623 Erie.  Now, whether

6 that's what is actually proposed or not --

7 because it appears that I've heard testimony

8 today that is something different, that the

9 driveway would be entirely on the 3443

10 Zumstein property, which that means a new curb

11 cut at the front of the property, which will

12 also increase -- or negatively impact the

13 environmental view because now there's more

14 pavement and less green space in the front

15 yard.  So that's not the direction that we

16 want to go.  So that covers what I want to

17 talk about for 2623.

18      What I want to talk about now is the new

19 parking at the rear of 3443 Zumstein.  I

20 participated extensively in the discussions

21 that took place throughout 2015 and I believe

22 2016 as the notwithstanding ordinance was put

23 together.  And there was extensive comments and

24 statements by the law firm that they were going

25 to make no changes to the exterior.  And
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1 whether they -- whether that was written into

2 the notwithstanding ordinance or not, again,

3 that's a point of contention of the (inaudible)

4 statements made at that time.  And an agreement

5 or consensus or withdraw of objections to the

6 notwithstanding ordinance, a lot of what took

7 place in that time period was because of the

8 belief by the neighbors that there would be no

9 changes to the exterior.  That's quite the

10 difference now.  And one only wants to start

11 speculating about what's going to be the next

12 change that's going to take place until you

13 have the entire panel under the tent.  So not

14 what we were expecting.

15      Finally -- I guess not finally, but I know

16 of no other situation in Hyde Park where you

17 have office parking or commercial parking

18 permitted on single -- in an SF-6 or any

19 single-family residential property.  The

20 numbers -- numerous attempts to do that where

21 the adjacent property owner has proposed

22 leasing parking spaces to the rear of their

23 yard or nearby consolidate commercial or office

24 use in Hyde Park Square and every one of those,

25 as previously pointed out that that was not
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1 permitted, has been enforced by the zoning

2 department and has not been approved.  This is

3 an unusual situation because the applicant owns

4 both properties.  So he's not really renting it

5 from another owner or leasing the space or

6 leasing the parking spaces from another owner.

7 He's purely, as the owner of both properties,

8 giving privileges to occupants of both

9 buildings to use either (inaudible) I assume

10 the way that it would work, regardless of what

11 statements was made when someone enters the

12 parking lot, it's a client or an employee of

13 the building, they're going to go into the

14 first parking lot that is available to them

15 that's marked that they could use, regardless

16 of which building they're going to go to.

17      Finally, with respect to this property, I

18 see one -- I think one of the (inaudible), at

19 least I like to offer that one of your job

20 responsibilities is not to create more problems

21 in the future.  The notwithstanding --

22      MR. TIDD:  I try not to create more

23 problems.

24      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  The notwithstanding

25 ordinance clearly says that if SSP's
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1 (inaudible) to use the Zumstein property, it

2 will refer to single-family or it's now used

3 as multi-family recently, resort to

4 residential uses.  It makes no claim as to

5 whether the residential use would be

6 maintained by the same ownership or whether

7 the property would be put up for sale.

8 Perhaps at some point in the future SSP may

9 cease to exist or choose to move to Anderson

10 or some other location and they may decide to

11 dispense with both properties for whatever

12 reason.  I think you want to make it clear

13 that whatever decision you make, that the

14 properties are separable in the future so that

15 some -- if the parking lot is configured, as

16 shown on page 4 of the staff report, you might

17 have a parking lot at the rear of 3443

18 Zumstein but it can't be accessed without

19 going over the property next-door, 2623 Erie.

20 And I see nothing in writing about an easement

21 being granted to use that property.  So a lot

22 of it depends on exactly specifically what is

23 the proposed configuration of the parking

24 lots.

25      And we heard testimony from a client of
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1 SSP that he was a professional surveyor.  And I

2 see nothing on the plan that was submitted

3 showing any dimensions.  And I would expect

4 that as a professional surveyor, and I think he

5 also perhaps said civil engineer, planning

6 exactly what this parking is going to look

7 like, there would be certain dimensions as to

8 the width of the driveway, the setbacks.  I see

9 landscaping shown around the perimeter.  I am

10 quite sure that the landscaping buffer is not

11 10 feet in width because it does not scale

12 correctly here.  So it's very vague of exactly

13 what's going to be constructed, where it's

14 going to be, and how it fits on the property.

15      Finally, I'd like to say one thing to

16 answer a question that was put to Mr. Hassell

17 earlier.  There can be no -- there would be --

18 schools cannot be a commercial use because if

19 it was a commercial use, it would not be

20 permitted on the property because it's zoned

21 SF-6.  And as a commercial business, it's not

22 even a conditional use for SF-6.  A school is a

23 non --

24      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Wollenweber, I do

25 understand that (inaudible).  I know that
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1 it's -- that's fine.  I knew the difference --

2      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  And there have been a

3 number of efforts to lease the school

4 property, rent the school parking lot for

5 different things.  And essentially there have

6 been -- it's been denied every time and --

7 because we want to maintain that as an SF-6

8 property.  Granted there are users that use it

9 unofficially, like the Blast and other people

10 for the Hyde Park Market, but there is no

11 leasing and no legal arrangement to officially

12 allow the uses by people that are off-site

13 renting commercial parking spaces.  Thank you.

14      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Saba, do

15 you have any questions?

16      MR. SABA:  I do.  Mr. Wollenweber, you'd

17 agree that the 3443 Zumstein residential uses

18 have required off-street parking that would be

19 satisfied by the proposed rear yard parking;

20 is that correct?

21      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  That's correct.

22      MR. SABA:  Okay.  It would be consistent

23 with that in terms of having a driveway that

24 would be on the Zumstein property itself,

25 right?
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1      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  I do not see that as a

2 part of your proposal.

3      MR. SABA:  Okay.  So you're not --

4      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  It's not in your

5 documents.

6      MR. SABA:  And that wasn't my question.

7 My question was more --

8      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  It sounded like a

9 question.

10      MR. SABA:  No, I asked you a question,

11 sir, that you would agree that having a

12 driveway on the Zumstein property itself would

13 also be consistent with that?

14      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Yes.

15      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And your issue is you

16 didn't see that in our plan?

17      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  But also that same

18 parking, that same parking that you just

19 proposed, driveway and parking, would not be

20 permitted to be used by the business

21 next-door.

22      MR. SABA:  And that wasn't my question.

23      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Okay.  What is your

24 question?

25      MR. SABA:  With respect to -- you'd agree
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1 that the SF-6 does allow parking, correct?

2      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Yes.  It requires a

3 parking space either in a garage or in a

4 parking space at the side or rear yard of the

5 property.

6      MR. SABA:  Okay.  And this would be in

7 the rear yard, correct?

8      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  That part of the

9 drawing I can agree with.

10      MR. SABA:  And have the driveway run up

11 in the front (inaudible).

12      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  That's correct.

13      MR. SABA:  All right.  With respect to

14 Section 1423-13A -- excuse me, 1423-11, you'd

15 agree that that does not require a buffer yard

16 with respect to the demolition of the garage

17 at 2623 Erie, correct?

18      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  I got lost in your

19 numbers.  You have to slow down a bit.

20      MR. SABA:  Sure.  Section 1423-11?

21      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Okay.  I don't know

22 what that -- okay.  Yes.  Okay.

23      MR. SABA:  That that would not require a

24 buffer yard in association with the demolition

25 of the garage at 2623 --
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1      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  I don't necessarily

2 agree with that.  There's a lot of ands or ors

3 and commas in there.  It depends on how you

4 determine those outside areas.  It doesn't say

5 the word some above the areas anywhere in

6 that.  So whether it's parceled or you divide

7 it up by the uses, because certainly it talks

8 about structures, parking, outdoor storage

9 areas, and outdoor parking and outdoor storage

10 areas and garage might be determined as

11 separate uses.

12      MR. SABA:  You'd agree that the existing

13 site ground coverage is not going to change

14 with the demolition of the garage --

15      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  The site --

16      MR. SABA:  -- and replacing it with

17 pavement?

18      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  The site coverage, the

19 outdoor parking does change with demolition of

20 the garage.  It doubles in size.

21      MR. SABA:  My question is coverage of the

22 ground.  The ground is currently covered by

23 the garage, correct?

24      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Part of the ground is

25 covered by the garage.  Part of the ground is
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1 covered by the outdoor parking.  I tell you,

2 we're going to disagree on this.  You're not

3 going to get me to agree that -- there's

4 nowhere, nothing about the some of the area in

5 this paragraph.

6      MR. SABA:  And in terms of -- the one

7 thing I want you to agree with, sir, you agree

8 that the ground is covered by the garage and

9 that pavement will be covering that same area,

10 correct, based upon our plan?

11      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  The pavement that is

12 going to be placed where the garage used to

13 be, yes.  And that, with the addition of that

14 outdoor pavement, doubles the outdoor parking

15 area.

16      MR. SABA:  Okay.  That's all the

17 questions I have.

18      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

19      MR. SUDER:  No questions.

20      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, Mr. Wollenweber.

21      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Thank you.

22      MR. TIDD:  And what is your name for the

23 record?

24      MS. BUENING:  My name is Janet Buening.

25 I'm the resident of 3520 Mooney Avenue, which
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1 is three houses up from Erie.  And to the

2 gentleman that thinks that the people on

3 Mooney give him dirty looks when he parks

4 there, you can park on our street anytime you

5 want, just don't block my driveway.  We expect

6 that.  We know we live in an urban area and

7 we're perfectly happy to let other people use

8 our street for parking during the day.  Much

9 prefer that to see a neighborhood diminished.

10 So having said that, sorry --

11      MR. TIDD:  Ms. Buening, are you part of

12 the Hyde Park Neighborhood Council --

13      MS. BUENING:  Yes.

14      MR. TIDD:  -- or is it just yourself?

15      MS. BUENING:  Yes, both.  I speak as a

16 neighbor, a resident of Mooney for 44 years.

17 But at our meeting last night, the Hyde Park

18 Neighborhood Council did pass a motion in

19 support of the zoning committee's

20 recommendation, which Gary just explained to

21 you.  So this does have the things that we as

22 members of the neighborhood council say does

23 have the official weight, if you will, of a

24 vote behind it.  This is the will of our

25 council, as well as our individual ideas.  So
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1 anything else?

2      MR. TIDD:  No.

3      MS. BUENING:  Okay.  So what I was going

4 to say, I didn't really prepare a lot to come

5 here except I want (inaudible) before because

6 I had the TV on this morning and I saw yet

7 again the Good Feet commercial where the nice

8 young lady comes out and says -- shows you all

9 her inserts and first thing --

10      MR. TIDD:  I hate to cut you off, but

11 Mr. Wollenweber, can I have those photos?

12      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  Yeah, I was going to

13 give them to you.

14      MR. TIDD:  I just didn't want --

15      MR. WOLLENWEBER:  I was going to wait

16 until Janet stopped speaking to --

17      MR. TIDD:  I hate to interrupt you.

18      MS. BUENING:  I didn't know what was

19 going on.

20      MR. TIDD:  When I saw Ms. Buening's large

21 pile of papers, it reminded me.

22      MS. BUENING:  You know, all courtesy of

23 the city.  What can I say.  So anyway, the

24 commercial, the nice young lady, comes out,

25 talks about, you know, how she -- first she

Erie Appeal  0197  



Page 83

1 built this and then she built this and then

2 she added this, and I would have just been

3 better off in the first place if I'd just gone

4 to the Good Feet Store.  And I thought that's

5 how I feel about coming here again today.

6 This has been going on since, what, 2014, you

7 know.  And first we all said this and then we

8 all wrote this and then these were all the

9 letters we sent to city council and this is

10 all the stuff that neighborhood council and

11 everybody else did.  And at the end of it,

12 we're here again and we just would have been

13 better off in the first place if the city

14 would have not voted to oppose the zone change

15 and not even put the NWO in place.  We could

16 have all saved a lot of time and our

17 community, would, I believe, be better off in

18 the first place.

19      I'd like to -- I didn't write a new

20 presentation today because I looked at my old

21 one and I thought, wow, I already wrote what I

22 need to say today.  So this is from a letter I

23 wrote to city council.  This was written as a

24 resident, not as a representative of the

25 neighborhood council, but my personal
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1 statement.  And in that I said -- this was on

2 November 29, 2015, just before they took the

3 vote on approving the NWO for your property.

4 And I wrote, however, having received and

5 carefully reviewed the ordinance that was set

6 (inaudible) November 25th, I have come to the

7 conclusion that the NWO is not good for the

8 3400 block of Zumstein.  While I deeply

9 appreciate the efforts of the neighborhood's

10 committee to try to satisfy the needs and

11 desires of all affected parties, the additions

12 and deletions made to the first draft convinced

13 me that an NWO will not bring closure on this

14 issue to the Zumstein residents or protect the

15 residential quality of the street.  It is

16 simply the next step in a process that has

17 already gone on for nearly a year and surely

18 will be followed quickly by a request for a

19 variance or a special exception as Section 7 of

20 the NWO allows to make 3443 Zumstein more

21 suitable for office use.  Given that SSP was

22 soliciting letters to support for the time

23 change is really -- is November 2015, but did

24 not close on the purchase of the property until

25 December 4, 2014, I would not be surprised if
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1 the request for an exception has not already

2 been planned or written in this (inaudible)

3 file.  So I knew on November 29th of 2015 that

4 we would all be here sooner or later.  And here

5 we are.  So what I want to say is it is

6 different to have the kind of parking that the

7 law firm is proposing.  It is far more visible

8 than backyard parking because it flows

9 contiguously into the property on Erie

10 property.  It makes -- it's a larger mass.  It

11 is completely visible and sets up -- it's not

12 the same as parking in somebody's backyard that

13 might accommodate two cars.  It's a matter of

14 scale and mass and visibility.  But the worst

15 thing, what it does is it allows commercial

16 creep into our residential neighborhood.  And,

17 yes, which really frightens me, as a person

18 who's been to way too many of these hearings,

19 is directly across the street is a

20 grandfathered-in parking lot that everybody

21 wishes wasn't there but it is.  And that's one

22 thing.  And you kind of used that as your

23 precedent to do what you wanted to do on the

24 other side of Zumstein.  So once we know how

25 much -- I'm not a lawyer.  I have no legal
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1 training, but we know that the law loves

2 precedence.  So once you've got a parking lot

3 here, parking lot here, tell me how the city is

4 going to be able to keep saying no to people

5 who come and ask for zone changes and want to

6 continue until the entire cul-de-sac of

7 Zumstein has turned into an office park.

8      So I do want to say that as a 46-year

9 resident of Hyde Park, 44 of those years on

10 Mooney, 42 years as an active member of the

11 Hyde Park Neighborhood Council who has been to

12 too many hearings like this, asking the hearing

13 examiner to please consider the unified

14 opposition of the residents of the street, the

15 good arguments made by the lawyer, by Gary

16 Wollenweber, our zoning committee, and to deny

17 this request, these two requests, which are not

18 in the spirit of the UDOD or the NWO.  And,

19 again, I'm not a lawyer, but they even don't

20 seem to be in the letter of the law of those

21 things.  So I would hope that it stops here.

22 And if we say no to this one, maybe we don't

23 have to come back again.  So thank you for

24 listening.

25      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, ma'am.  Mr. Saba,
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1 do you have any questions?

2      MR. SABA:  Yes.

3      Ms. Buening, you'd agree with

4 Mr. Wollenweber's statement that the 3443

5 Zumstein residential uses have required

6 off-street parking that would be satisfied by

7 the proposed yard -- rear yard parking that

8 we're submitting?

9      MS. BUENING:  The uses of the building as

10 it was before or the building the way you're

11 using it now?

12      MR. SABA:  As a three-family residence,

13 that the placement of that parking would be

14 consistent with that?

15      MS. BUENING:  I honestly do not know the

16 zoning code as well as Gary does.  I know that

17 I live next to a four-unit building that does

18 not have more than three spaces in the

19 backyard.  So I really don't know how to

20 answer your question.  I don't have the zoning

21 code memorized.

22      MR. SABA:  You don't disagree with

23 Mr. Wollenweber, though.  You trust his

24 knowledge of the zoning code, correct?

25      MS. BUENING:  I trust Gary on many
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1 things, but I'm a cynical person.  I don't

2 trust anything.  I have to verify it.  So I

3 can't say that I do.

4      MR. SABA:  You have no reason to dispute

5 what he said, correct?

6      MS. BUENING:  I --

7      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, she already said she

8 didn't know.

9      MS. BUENING:  I (inaudible) dispute nor

10 necessarily agree with what Gary said except

11 that we as a council have said we'd stand

12 against this request.

13      MR. SABA:  That's all the questions I

14 have.  Thank you.

15      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

16      MR. SUDER:  No questions.

17      MS. BUENING:  Thank you.

18      MR. TIDD:  Do we have somebody else in

19 the first row?

20      MS. SHERMANN:  Thank you, Todd.  My name

21 is Sheila Shermann.  My name is Sheila

22 Shermann.  I live at 3433 Zumstein and I've

23 lived there about 35 years, and here we are

24 again.  I guess the demolition of the garage

25 is the gateway to the parking lot behind the
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1 residential property.  That 3443 is zoned as a

2 two-family, but had been used as a

3 three-family by the family that owned it many,

4 many, many years ago, so I suppose it's

5 grandfathered.  It has never had any

6 off-street parking.  There appears to be no

7 room.  What I don't understand is -- I have

8 pictures as well and I've looked at what they

9 presented.  The lot is 50 across by 150.  I

10 don't understand how you could put a driveway

11 totally on 3443 Zumstein by looking at the

12 pictures, and I've walked by it many times and

13 drive by it many times during the day.

14      So my big concern is that if this is

15 creating an easement driveway between the Erie

16 property of SSP and the residential property,

17 what happens if they decide not to have their

18 office anymore or when the day comes they wish

19 to sell it.  Or down the road as we're

20 continuing to chip away at what we worked so

21 hard for, that it would be, well, gee, now we

22 have this driveway, that it comes on both

23 properties, we can't let that go, so we really

24 need to change the zoning.

25      And the single-family property next to the
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1 Smith-Carnes parking lot -- I'm a real estate

2 broker and I have been for 38 years and I've

3 sold that house several times over the years.

4 And it's a tough sell next to that ugly fence

5 and the parking lot.  And then, of course,

6 there is the parking garage that affronts

7 Edwards that was built some time ago.  So that

8 is hard to sell.  Those people have been there

9 a long time, such as I have.

10      But I just -- I've not heard anybody talk

11 about an easement driveway.  And, I mean, I

12 have pictures too and I see it.  I live three

13 doors down.  Where is the driveway going to be?

14 There's no -- I don't see any room on the

15 residential property.  And back when we were

16 objecting to the -- changing the zoning, you

17 know, parking was just so sidestepped that the

18 Erie property, I guess, was grandfathered and

19 didn't have to have all of the parking that

20 would normally occur in an office setting.  And

21 also, the residential property, Zumstein,

22 being, I believe, 4,100 square feet, would

23 require six parking places.  So that indeed is

24 true for that residential property.  My concern

25 is how do you get there?  What if somebody else
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1 owns the Erie property?  I don't know and I

2 just don't see that this driveway is going to

3 sit solely on the Zumstein property.  I don't

4 know how it could with 50 feet across.  I mean,

5 I haven't measured it.  But having a parking

6 lot back there, I'm not looking forward to it.

7      But like I said, my biggest concern, and

8 no one's used the word easement, what is going

9 on with that driveway and is it going to be on

10 the Zumstein property?  Are they going to take

11 a piece of the building off?  And the

12 elevation, I have pictures, too, between their

13 stone wall and their driveway, I don't -- you

14 know, I'm not a contractor.  I don't know how

15 that's all going to work because it drops down.

16 I mean, I've walked there.  But you can see

17 here there, there just -- there isn't a lot of

18 room here.  I don't know where -- when they

19 take down the garage, certainly there'll be a

20 wider space to create a wider driveway.  But it

21 appears that it will not be totally located on

22 the Zumstein property.

23      MR. TIDD:  Can you show both those

24 pictures to Mr. Suder and Mr. Saba?

25      MS. SHERMANN:  Yeah.  I think you already
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1 have those.  (Inaudible).

2      MALE SPEAKER:  (Inaudible).

3      MS. SHERMANN:  So I don't know why

4 we're -- I don't know either why we're here at

5 the zoning hearing.  I just think down the

6 road, as Janet said, it's just chipping away

7 from the residential use of the property.

8      And, you know, I got an e-mail from

9 someone at the SSP office.  I did not get a

10 notification of this hearing.  I don't know why

11 I didn't get anything, but I did get an e-mail

12 from the SSP office saying that they wanted to

13 apply to demo the garage and the garage was

14 delapidated.  Well, you know, they've owned the

15 garage for many, many years.  If it's

16 delapidated, it's because they didn't take care

17 of it, but that it would help alleviate some of

18 the parking on Zumstein.  Well, I got to tell

19 you, Zumstein is -- probably Mooney too, it's

20 like a bowl of sand.  If you take a scoop out,

21 it will quickly fill back up.  It's not going

22 to alleviate anything.  People from the

23 businesses, people that shop and have lunch, as

24 we discussed forever in our zoning hearings --

25 or our hearings before, it's not going to
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1 alleviate -- it's not going to make a big deal.

2 But, yes, there is parking.  We all have

3 parking.  Most of us have parking.  There are

4 some houses in the neighborhood that have no

5 off-street parking, and 3443 Zumstein was one

6 of them.

7      But I don't know.  If somebody can answer

8 me, if that driveway is going to be totally on

9 Zumstein, I don't think so.  So everything else

10 has been covered.  I won't go through all of

11 that, but that's all I have.

12      MR. TIDD:  Do you want to introduce those

13 photos?  Do you want me to keep those?

14      MS. SHERMANN:  Yeah.  Did I take them --

15 sure.

16      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Saba, do you have any

17 questions?

18      MR. SABA:  I do.

19      Sheila, I'm just trying to understand

20 because you talked about your biggest concern

21 of whether or not the driveway fits there and,

22 you know, whether or not there's an easement.

23 I guess I'm trying to understand in terms of

24 just your biggest concern, making sure that

25 that's a separate contiguous structure,
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1 separate parking, that no matter what happens,

2 assume we stop using that building, then we

3 would sell it, it goes back to being a

4 three-family, that it would be able to continue

5 to operate as a three-family with parking in

6 the back?

7      MS. SHERMANN:  Yes, I think that would be

8 good if it wasn't an easement driveway.  Is it

9 an easement driveway?

10      MR. SABA:  No, the plans we currently

11 have are that they can fit the driveway on

12 there as it fits --

13      MR. TIDD:  Remember, Mr. Saba, you can't

14 answer her questions.  You have to ask her

15 questions.

16      MR. SABA:  All right.  Sheila, I'll try

17 and ask the next question.  I'm just trying to

18 understand your concern, your concern being,

19 again, going back to that question, is just

20 trying to make sure that whatever happens down

21 the road, if we would discontinue use, that it

22 wouldn't affect -- that that parking somehow

23 was affected or the ability to use it as a

24 (inaudible).  Am I understanding that

25 correctly?
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1      MS. SHERMANN:  Are you asking me if

2 that's my concern?

3      MR. SABA:  Yeah.  I realize you may have

4 more than one concern.  It was just based on

5 your explanation and your concern about

6 whether or not it fits there?

7      MS. SHERMANN:  Yes, that is my concern

8 that -- yes.

9      MR. SABA:  And that's more what I'm

10 trying to understand.  Would it alleviate your

11 concern if they are able to go ahead and fit

12 the driveway there such that it is permanently

13 set, it's part of the Zumstein property or

14 that, otherwise, if for some reason they were

15 not able to, there's a permanent easement of

16 record or covenant of record that allows them

17 to always use that driveway just for the

18 Zumstein property?

19      MS. SHERMANN:  What's your question?

20      MR. SABA:  I'll rephrase my question.  So

21 with respect to that, we talked about your

22 concern, would your concern be alleviated then

23 if that driveway is placed there either solely

24 on the Zumstein property and/or with a

25 permanent covenant of record that if for some
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1 reason it would stretch onto the Erie

2 property, which it does, or that there'll be a

3 permanent easement or covenant of record that

4 would allow the continued use of that

5 driveway?

6      MS. SHERMANN:  I would still be

7 concerned.

8      MR. SABA:  Okay.  What would be your

9 concern then?

10      MS. SHERMANN:  That there would be an

11 easement driveway between a residential

12 property and an office zoned property.

13      MR. SABA:  And why would you be concerned

14 about that?

15      MS. SHERMANN:  And I don't know all the

16 zoning, but if you have different owners, you

17 have -- I mean, you know, I'm a Realtor.  I

18 mean, I'm just thinking if I go to try to sell

19 your three-family and, oh, by the way there's

20 an easement driveway over here with this

21 office on the corner, I just -- that's not a

22 good mix.  So I would still be concerned.  And

23 my concern is that it's not going to fit, but,

24 yes, I'd still be concerned because you have

25 two different zoned properties sharing -- you
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1 have an easement driveway.

2      MR. SABA:  Well, they wouldn't be

3 sharing.  It would just be for the use of

4 Zumstein ingress and egress.  So how would

5 that be different in your mind from -- if it

6 was an easement over a residential property?

7      MS. SHERMANN:  It would be different

8 because it's zoned office.  And if it would be

9 partially on the Erie property, can't you

10 imagine it would lead to a lot of problems

11 with parking and egress and ingress with a

12 business and a residential and tenants parking

13 in the -- I just think it's a can of worms.

14 But, no, I would not -- it wouldn't alleviate

15 my problems.

16      MR. SABA:  That's all I have.

17      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder, any questions?

18      MR. SUDER:  No, Your Honor.

19      MR. TIDD:  Can I have those photos?

20      MS. SHERMANN:  Yes, I (inaudible) right

21 to you.

22      MR. TIDD:  Thank you.  Sir, are you next?

23      MR. GARDINER:  Yes.

24      MR. TIDD:  What is your name for the

25 record?
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1      MR. GARDINER:  Cooper Gardiner.  I live

2 at 3547 Mooney.  I'm a member of the zoning

3 committee of (inaudible).  And I guess as I've

4 been listening, I particularly appreciate the

5 preliminary nature of this process so that

6 facts can come out (inaudible).  There are

7 facts about the proposal (inaudible) just from

8 common sense of the zoning code that I think

9 should trouble the city and their appealings

10 for our neighbors facing negative changes to

11 the character of the residential variant now

12 and their concern for the future of their

13 homes.  As an architect, I would expect

14 professional documentation at this point,

15 particularly with the two parcels.  And

16 there's been ample discussion of the vagueness

17 and the confusion that has caused them and at

18 least opined, frankly, for all of us.  But the

19 evidence omits, the record omits clear civil

20 engineering and landscape architect's drawings

21 for the neighbors to examine.  As a neighbor

22 for, you know, these three decades, I care

23 about every encroachment of office commercial

24 activity beyond what the neighborhood has

25 agreed.  The fact is that the parking garage
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1 (inaudible) use of parking and maintains the

2 residential scale and look of this highly

3 desirable Hyde Park Square.  And even as I

4 walked to the Square yesterday on Erie, I

5 noted the garage there and blocking the view

6 at the end of the driveway.  That short

7 residential length of view like this is one of

8 the qualities that this proposal would change

9 and it would be for the worse.

10      MR. TIDD:  Thank you.  Mr. Saba, do you

11 have any questions?

12      MR. SABA:  No.

13      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

14      MR. SUDER:  No, Your Honor.

15      MR. TIDD:  Thanks.  I think I saw one

16 more hand, correct?

17      MR. UBELACKER:  Good afternoon, Mr. Tidd.

18 For the record, I am Carl Ubelacker.  I'm a

19 long-time member -- in fact, I'm a member of

20 the Hyde Park Neighborhood Council, seems like

21 I was born on the zoning committee of the Hyde

22 Park Neighborhood Council.  I'm still active

23 on the Hyde Park Neighborhood Council's zoning

24 committee.  I was involved a year and a half

25 or two ago with the original proposal.  I
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1 think there's three different aspects to this

2 application that I would like you to think

3 about.  One is the garage removal.  It's my

4 opinion that it does not meet the requirements

5 in the UDOD because it is a structure that

6 contributes to the architectural quality of

7 the district by its function of a screen for

8 parking areas by commercial users.

9 Essentially, it fails to meet the code for

10 demolition approval.

11      Another aspect of this is the new driveway

12 and parking lot.  Frankly, that's an

13 unconscionable invasion of the residential

14 environment for commercial purposes, which was

15 a big situation of when this came up in the

16 very first place.  It will not improve the

17 parking situation on Zumstein.  Nothing short

18 of the abolition of motor vehicles will improve

19 that.

20      So I've been a resident of Hyde Park for

21 well over 47 years and that street used to be

22 almost solely dedicated to postal employees.

23 They had 30-some carriers that worked out of

24 the post office.  That's where they parked.

25 Came in at 7:00 in the morning and were there
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1 all day.  They moved the carriers over to

2 Marietta.  But guess what?  As it was

3 described, you take some sand, a scoop of sand

4 out of the beach, it just fills itself back in.

5 That's exactly what happens.  Moving or

6 creating these few parking spaces in the

7 residential environment, it's an SF-6, will not

8 improve the parking situation on Zumstein.

9      The third aspect to this that I bring up

10 here is essentially this application is a

11 repudiation of the negotiated agreement of two

12 plus years ago when they originally asked for a

13 zone change because they don't have room to

14 expand, their business is going to move out of

15 the city.  They already had an office, of

16 course, out in Anderson Township, but that was

17 immaterial.  This application is nothing more

18 than a direct attempt to negate the agreements

19 that were written in the notwithstanding

20 ordinance and is a backdoor attempt to change

21 the zoning without approval of the planning

22 commission and city council, which both had to

23 approve the notwithstanding ordinance in the

24 first place.  I urge you to deny this

25 application.

Erie Appeal  0216  



Page 102

1      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, sir.  Mr. Saba, do

2 you have any questions?

3      MR. SABA:  No, I don't.

4      MR. TIDD:  Mr. Suder?

5      MR. SUDER:  No, Your Honor.

6      MR. TIDD:  Thank you.  I believe that was

7 everybody from the public.  At this point,

8 Mr. Saba, I am going to give you an option.

9 Would you like to rebut anything that's said

10 now or would you rather address rebuttal on

11 closing after Mr. Suder?

12      MR. SABA:  I'll address rebuttal

13 questions after Mr. Suder.

14      MR. TIDD:  Okay.  Mr. Suder?

15      MR. SUDER:  Thank you.  Well, now you've

16 heard from the applicant as to why -- what

17 they want to do and why they want to do it.

18 And it's understandable why they want to do

19 what they want to do.  You've heard from my

20 client (inaudible) resident, Zumstein, a lot

21 of members of Hyde Park Neighborhood Council

22 and other Hyde Park residents that lived there

23 a long time, you've heard their concerns and

24 why they're opposed to it, and those are

25 reasonable concerns for citizens to have.  But
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1 this isn't a variance.  I want to be very

2 clear about that.  They're not here, despite

3 what the staff reports say, this is not a

4 variance.  It's a different type of inquiry.

5 It isn't a balancing of the equities.

6 Business wants parking lots, reasonable

7 neighbors don't want it for some reason, let's

8 just balance this, unbalanced, you know, it

9 could come out either way.  No, this is an

10 inquiry under UDOD, Urban Design Overlay

11 District.  It's very specific to certain parts

12 of the city, right?  It's very specific to a

13 number of neighborhoods that the city council

14 at some point in time, the planning commission

15 and the city council determined deserved

16 greater protections than the rest of the city.

17 And Hyde Park Square Business District is one

18 of those 13 areas of the city that the city

19 council and elected citizens of the City of

20 Cincinnati determined needed special

21 protections.  And what that means is, it's a

22 different inquiry, it's not a, well, this

23 person wants this (inaudible) is it

24 reasonable?  No.  It's four specific things

25 that you may want to do in this district, and
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1 that list includes signs, awnings, mechanical

2 equipment and utilities, replacement windows,

3 replace windows (inaudible) exterior

4 renovation and alterations of existing

5 structures, eating and drinking

6 establishments, franchise establishments, any

7 new construction that takes place and

8 demolition, any demolition that takes place.

9 All of those items, if you want to do any of

10 that, those things within the Urban Design

11 Overlay District, in this case No. 4, Hyde

12 Park, you have to go to 1437 and you have to

13 go to 14307-09 and you go under the category

14 and you have to meet those development

15 standards.  The statute says must, must.

16      14307-09 says development within

17 individual UD Overlay Districts must comply

18 with the standards described below in that

19 table that the ordinance that establishes the

20 UD Overlay District declares applicable to that

21 district.  These are very specific.  We can

22 argue and debate whether they're too strict.

23 They may be strict over the historic district,

24 but we don't get to make that decision.  We're

25 not elected onto city council.  There's a
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1 reason that Hyde Park is not an historic

2 district.  I don't think Hyde Park wanted to be

3 in the historic district, but they did want the

4 Urban Design Overlay protection.  The Urban

5 Design Overlay protection includes protections

6 against demolitions.  And very plainly, there's

7 no reason or unreasonable reading of the

8 statute, it's very plain.  You go to D1.  And

9 it says, demolition has been ordered by the

10 director of buildings and inspections for

11 reasons of public health and safety and, it's

12 not a typo, it's very specific in that

13 ordinance, if you look up that ordinance, that

14 changes in 2015, just a few years ago, and.

15 And so the threshold is that, look, this thing

16 has to be unsafe, having been declared unsafe

17 and ordered demolished by the city and on top

18 of that, one or more of these other things have

19 to be -- you can look at the statute.  It's

20 got -- the first, D1, demolition has been

21 ordered sentence, and then it has these bullet

22 points after it.  They were not intended to be

23 equal.  There's no typo here.  It's very clear

24 that the first provision has to be satisfied

25 before you even get to any other factors.
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1 That's strict.  It sure is.  But it's strict

2 because we're protecting a place like Hyde Park

3 Square.  This is all very intentional.  And

4 it's without question that the applicant hasn't

5 satisfied this development standard.  I mean,

6 he testified that he hasn't.  He can't because

7 there's not been any demolition that's been

8 ordered of this garage.  Therefore, there's

9 simply nothing that we can do, you can do or

10 anyone else can do to demolish this garage at

11 this point in time.  There's no demolition

12 allowed of this garage under the statute, very

13 plain reading of the statute.  So, therefore,

14 that application must be denied.  That's pretty

15 clear.  It's plain and simple.

16      As far as the new construction goes of the

17 new parking lot, Mr. Saba and the applicant

18 have hung their hat on vested rights.  It seems

19 to be they keep going back to, well, this is in

20 the SF-2 and why couldn't we put parking back

21 there in the SF-2, it's allowed in the SF-2.

22 Well, because it's not an allowed use under the

23 SF-2.  This is a legal nonconforming

24 three-family building.  There's no right --

25 this is not a single-family house or a
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1 two-family that's permitted in the SF-6 that

2 you could say, well, these rights existed and

3 you can -- you now have to allow me the same

4 rights as any other property in the SF-6.

5 These rights never existed.  They don't exist.

6 There's no driveway.  There's no parking.

7      You heard testimony that this property has

8 never had off-street parking.  It was used as a

9 grandfathered three-family with no off-street

10 parking.  So those rights, you can't hang your

11 hat on those rights.  The applicant can't hang

12 their hat on rights that don't exist and say,

13 well, we're allowed to do it, so we should be

14 allowed to do it for an office as well.  Not

15 true.  They're not allowed to do it right now

16 as a three-family.  You're not allowed to do it

17 as an office.

18      Under 14307-09, back to that again,

19 there's nothing that really specifically

20 addresses parking lots, but it does talk about

21 new construction.  And it says, new buildings

22 shall be compatible with their surroundings,

23 architectural style, bulk, shape, mass and

24 scale and form of new buildings and the space

25 between and around buildings shall be
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1 consistent with the area and it should be

2 (inaudible).  Well, this is space in and

3 around -- between and around buildings.  And

4 you've heard ample evidence today from multiple

5 people that this is inconsistent with the area

6 around it.  Commercial parking lot, a

7 commercial office campus is inconsistent with

8 the residential character of Zumstein, one of

9 the great and most recognized residential

10 streets in all of Hyde Park.

11      So, again, we're confined in the UDOD.

12 We're confined to the standards there.  If they

13 don't satisfy them, they don't get the

14 permission.  That's how the law works in 1437.

15 And they have not satisfied those requirements

16 and, therefore, the applications must be

17 denied.  Thank you.

18      MR. TIDD:  Thank you.  Mr. Saba?

19      MR. SABA:  Thank you.  Addressing first

20 Mr. Suder's interpretation of 14307-09.

21 The -- I think you have to read the entire

22 statute in totality to really understand how

23 it's written and the way that it's written.

24 With every other section under that UDOD

25 provision, they discussed about (inaudible)
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1 limited shall meet the following standards.

2 New businesses should contribute.  New

3 buildings shall be compatible.  They set the

4 standards of mandatory language or

5 non-mandatory language.  What he wants to try

6 and do, there is no mandatory language in that

7 section.  They don't put in shall.  They put a

8 series and list of events.  He's trying to

9 focus on the word and, and trying to interpret

10 that as creating a double standard.  It's an

11 unreasonable reading.  Even using simple

12 logic, it's an unreasonable reading.  Under

13 his reading, if a director of buildings and

14 inspections has ordered that a building be

15 demolished because of safety, because of

16 public health and safety, it can't be

17 demolished unless it satisfies these other

18 characteristics.  So you can have an unsafe,

19 unhealthy building, something that threatens

20 safety and health, and under his reading, no,

21 you're not allowed to demolish that, you have

22 to meet one of the other standards.  And so we

23 just have to have an unhealthy or an unsafe

24 building to the public that would sit there.

25 That is not a reasonable reading of the
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1 statute.  There's not shall or mandatory

2 language written there in that fashion.  The

3 statute uses mandatory and non-mandatory

4 language.  Clearly the reasonable reading of

5 the statute is those are various parameters

6 that justify demolition in certain

7 circumstances.  And in this situation

8 demolition is justified, both in terms of

9 adding parking and because the lack of

10 architectural value provided by that building.

11 There is no screening that's required by this

12 development.  It doesn't have to be in there.

13 It's not required by the zoning code.  This

14 is -- we complied with the zoning code with

15 respect to this.

16      There's a distorted reading that they're

17 trying to place on 13 -- excuse me, 1423-11

18 when it talks about redevelopment or expansion

19 of existing site ground coverage.  That's clear

20 what that means.  How much coverage do you have

21 on the ground right now?  Are you going to

22 change that ground coverage?  We're not

23 changing the ground coverage.  The garage is

24 removed, it's replaced with pavement.

25      The suggestion that, oh, it's so important
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1 if I have to see 14 cars parked, it's

2 disingenuous in the light of the number of cars

3 parked that, well, we'll tolerate them if

4 they're parked at a school because that's

5 school parking, but somehow we can't tolerate

6 it if it's parked somewhere else.  That makes

7 no sense whatsoever.  That's completely an

8 unreasonable interpretation of the parameters

9 here and unjustified argument against it.

10      With respect to the parking itself, I

11 believe that -- you know, what Mr. Wollenweber

12 indicated was clear, when he acknowledges, the

13 parking we're proposing for the rear of

14 Zumstein is consistent with the residential use

15 of that building.  It's consistent.  It

16 complies with it.  They're not opposed to it.

17 Mr. Suder suggested, no, you can't do that,

18 that's improper, or they suggested it's an

19 invasion of this neighborhood.  No, it is

20 consistent both with SF-6 and the requirements

21 for that property.  They concede that point.

22 They're opposed to it.  And we realize they've

23 been opposed to a number of things we would do.

24 I'm not going to get into whether or not there

25 have been personal comments in the past, but
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1 beyond that, you know, our position is, what

2 we're doing is reasonable.  It's in the best

3 interest of the neighborhood.  That's what

4 we're trying to achieve here.

5      As indicated both by the recommendations

6 and the reports that have been provided, we do

7 comply with all the zoning requirements.

8 Notwithstanding the confusion regarding the

9 Zumstein property, the attention is that that

10 driveway will be on that Zumstein property.

11 There's no future issue with respect to what

12 happens if we discontinue use of the property.

13 The suggestion -- and I believe that Mr. Suder

14 conceded this at the very beginning, that he

15 tried to suggest to the city that we're in the

16 wrong forum, that we shouldn't be here, that we

17 should be seeking an amendment at the NWO.  As

18 he indicated, the city made it clear, no,

19 that's not the situation.

20      What we're seeking here is not a change to

21 the NWO.  It's consistent with the rights that

22 were granted.  It's consistent with the use of

23 that property.  It's consistent with the SF-6

24 zoning that currently exists there.  I believe

25 the evidence firmly supports that approval
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1 should be granted with respect to this.  It is

2 in the best interest of this neighborhood.

3 It's in the best interest of the long-standing

4 problem that they acknowledge there is a

5 problem with parking.  And the recommendation

6 of the Hyde Park Square Conservation Plan years

7 ago, which hasn't changed, is we need more

8 off-street parking.  That's how we address the

9 issue.  It's not to ignore it.  It's not to

10 turn a blind eye to it.  It's to provide for

11 more off-street parking.  So it's consistent

12 with that plan.  It's consistent with the

13 expressed plan and the intention for that

14 neighborhood, and that's why we would ask that

15 you approve both applications with respect to

16 2623 Erie and 3443 Zumstein.

17      MR. TIDD:  Thank you, Mr. Saba.

18      MR. SABA:  Thank you.

19      MR. TIDD:  At this time I will close the

20 hearing.  We'll go off the record now.

21

22

23

24

25
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1                            )

2 STATE OF OHIO              )

3                            )

4

5

6

7

8

9                I, Mindy Davis, Notary Public in and

10 for the State of Ohio at Large, certify that the

11 audio recording was transcribed by me, and the

12 foregoing is a true record of said audio recording

13 transcribed to the best of my ability.

14

15

16      IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have subscribed my name

17 and affixed my seal this 13th day of August, 2018.

18

19

20

21

22                     MINDY DAVIS

23                     Notary Public

24                     My Commission expires: 04/03/16

25
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